

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School

ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting

Date and Time

Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM EDT

Location

Elementary Campus Library (virtual option available) 688 Grant St SE Atlanta, GA 30315

Notice of this meeting was posted on the ANCS website and both ANCS campuses in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1.

Agenda	Purpose	Presenter	Time
	Fulpose	Flesenter	TILLE
I. Opening Items			6:30 PM
Opening Items			
A. Record Attendance & Guests		Kristi Malloy	1 m
B. Call the Meeting to Order		Lee Kynes	1 m
C. Brain Smart Start	Discuss	Lesley Michaels	5 m
D. Public Comment			5 m
E. Approve Minutes from Prior Board Meeting	Approve Minutes	Lee Kynes	2 m
Approve minutes for ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting on February 28, 2022			
F. Approve Minutes from Special Board Meeting (3/4/2022)	Approve Minutes	Lee Kynes	2 m
II. PTCA Update			6:46 PM

A. PTCA Monthly Update	FYI	Rachel	5 m
		Ezzo	

	Purpose	Presenter	Time
III. School Leadership Updates			6:51 PM
A. Principals' Open Forum	FYI	Mark Sanders & Lara Zelski	10 m
B. Executive Director's Monthly Report	FYI	Chuck Meadows	20 m
C. Vote: CREATE Resolution	Vote	Chuck Meadows	5 m
IV. DEAT Update			7:26 PM
A. Monthly DEAT update	FYI	Carla Wells	5 m
V. Committee Updates			7:31 PM
A. Educational Excellence Committee Monthly Report	FYI	Jason Rhodes	5 m
B. Vote: 2022-2023 School Calendar	Vote	Jason Rhodes	5 m
C. Vote: Delay daily schedule vote until April	Vote	Jason Rhodes	5 m
D. Finance & Operations Committee Monthly Report	FYI	Emily Ormsby & Ben Sutton	5 m
E. Vote: Revise Investment of Funds Policy	Vote	Emily Ormsby	5 m
F. Governance Committee Monthly Report	FYI	Rhonda Collins	5 m
G. Vote: Personnel policies (section 5)	Vote	Rhonda Collins	5 m
H. Nominations Task Force Update	FYI	Angela Christie	5 m
I. Fund Development Committee Monthly Report	FYI	Barrett Coker Krise	5 m
VI. Housekeeping Items			8:16 PM
A. Training Reminder	FYI	Kristi Malloy	2 m
VII. Closing Items			8:18 PM
A. Adjourn Meeting	Vote	Lee Kynes	1 m

Coversheet

Approve Minutes from Prior Board Meeting

Section:I. Opening ItemsItem:E. Approve Minutes from Prior Board MeetingPurpose:Approve MinutesSubmitted by:Related Material:Minutes for ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting on February 28, 2022





Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School

Minutes

ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting

Date and Time

Monday February 28, 2022 at 6:30 PM

Notice of this meeting was posted on the ANCS website and both ANCS campuses in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 50-14-1.

Directors Present

Angela Christie (remote), Barrett Coker Krise (remote), Ben Sutton (remote), Carla Wells (remote), Emily Ormsby (remote), Hanah Goldberg (remote), Irina Brimmell (remote), Jason Rhodes (remote), Kristi Malloy (remote), Lee Kynes (remote), Rhonda Collins (remote)

Directors Absent

Pouya Dianat

Directors who left before the meeting adjourned Irina Brimmell

Guests Present

Brooke Midgette (remote), C Owens (remote), Chuck Meadows (remote), Cory (remote), Jarod Apperson (remote), Jerry Hanes (remote), Joel Larsgaard (remote), Kelly McKenzie (remote), Lara Zelski (remote), Mark Sanders (remote), Matt Altmix (remote), Nicole King (remote), Nicole Lupo (remote), Paige Teusink (remote), Rachel Ezzo (remote), Rhiannen Laurent (remote), Ruth Link-Gelles (remote), Vivian Lowe (remote)

I. Opening Items

- A. Record Attendance & Guests
- B. Call the Meeting to Order

Lee Kynes called a meeting of the board of directors of Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School to order on Monday Feb 28, 2022 at 6:30 PM.

C. Brain Smart Start

Kelly McKenzie led the group in an activity to unite, connect, disengage stress, and make a commitment.

D. Public Comment

- Matt Altmix provided a public comment.
- Joel Larsgaard provided a public comment.

E. Approve Minutes from Prior Board Meeting

Jason Rhodes made a motion to approve the minutes from ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting on 01-20-22. Emily Ormsby seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

II. PTCA Update

A. PTCA Monthly Update

• Rachel Ezzo provided the PTCA update, see board packet for details.

III. School Leadership Updates

A. Principals' Open Forum

- Mark Sanders provided an update for the middle campus.
- Lara Zelski provided an update for the elementary campus.

B. Executive Director's Monthly Report

• Chuck Meadows provided the Executive Director's Monthly report, see board packet for details.

IV. DEAT Update

A. Monthly DEAT update

• Carla Wells provided the DEAT update, see board packet for details.

V. Committee Updates

A. Educational Excellence Committee Monthly Report

• Jason Rhodes provided the Educational Excellence Committee update, see board packet for details.

B. Lottery Recommendations

• Jarod Apperson provided lottery recommendations to the board, see board packet for recommendation letter.

C. VOTE: Adopt Lottery Recommendations

Jason Rhodes made a motion to Apply the following weights to the upcoming lottery: 1000 for Zone 1 economically disadvantaged applicants, 500 for Zone 2 economically disadvantaged applicants, 100 for Zone 3 economically disadvantaged applicants.

Kristi Malloy seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Angela Christie made a motion to Authorize the lottery administration team to move sufficient economically disadvantaged applicants, for each grade, from Zones 2 and 3 into Zone 1, to statistically increase the likelihood ANCS will achieve our goal of 22.8% economically disadvantaged students in each grade. Jason Rhodes seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

D. Finance & Operations Committee Monthly Report

- Emily Ormsby provided the Finance and Operations Committee update, see board packet for details.
- Ben Sutton provided the Buildings and Grounds update, see board packet for details.

E. Governance Committee Monthly Report

• Rhonda Collins provided the Governance Committee update, see board packet for details.

F. Nominations Task Force Update

• Angela Christie provided the Nominations Task Force update, see board packet for details.

G. Discussion: Communications Task Force

- Rhonda Collins opened the floor to discuss the creation of a Communications Task Force to refine content on governing board web page, document an outline for crisis communication, and create onboarding/training materials for new board members.
- Governance Committee will continue to discuss and determine if is makes sense to establish a task force, or to have individual board members take on projects. Members interested should reach out to Rhonda.

H. Fund Development Committee Monthly Report

• Barrett Coker Krise provided the fund development update, see board packet for details.

VI. Housekeeping Items

A. Housekeeping Items

- Kristi Malloy reminded the governing board of training requirements.
- Lee Kynes discussed the need to fill officer roles and committee chair positions for next year.

Irina Brimmell left. Barrett Coker Krise made a motion to Enter executive session. Jason Rhodes seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

VII. Executive Session

A. Executive Session

The Governing Board entered Executive Session to discuss matters related to an employee.

VIII. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

Angela Christie made a motion to Adjourn the meeting. Jason Rhodes seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion. There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 9:20 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Kristi Malloy

Coversheet

Approve Minutes from Special Board Meeting (3/4/2022)

Section:I. Opening ItemsItem:F. Approve Minutes from Special Board Meeting (3/4/2022)Purpose:Approve MinutesSubmitted by:F. Approve MinutesRelated Material:Minutes for ANCS Governing Board: Special Meeting on March 4, 2022





Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School

Minutes

ANCS Governing Board: Special Meeting

Date and Time

Friday March 4, 2022 at 6:30 PM

Location

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86379019734

In accordance with Georgia's open meetings requirements, notice of this meeting has been posted at both campuses and on the ANCS website.

Directors Present

Angela Christie (remote), Barrett Coker Krise (remote), Ben Sutton (remote), Carla Wells (remote), Emily Ormsby (remote), Hanah Goldberg (remote), Irina Brimmell (remote), Jason Rhodes (remote), Kristi Malloy (remote), Lee Kynes (remote), Pouya Dianat (remote), Rhonda Collins (remote)

Directors Absent

None

Guests Present Chuck Meadows (remote), John Smith (remote), Taylor Jones (remote)

I. Opening Items

A. Record Attendance

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Lee Kynes called a meeting of the board of directors of Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School to order on Friday Mar 4, 2022 at 6:30 PM.

II. Lottery Recommendations

Α.

Discuss Lottery Recommendations

· Lee Kynes discussed the updated lottery recommendations.

B. Vote: Lottery Recommendations

Pouya Dianat made a motion to Apply a weight of 100 to all economically disadvantaged applicants.

Angela Christie seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Hanah Goldberg made a motion to Rescind the motion to authorize the lottery administration team to move sufficient economically disadvantaged applicants, for each grade, from Zones 2 and 3 into Zone 1, to statistically increase the likelihood Neighborhood Charter will achieve our goal of 22.8% economically disadvantaged students in each grade.

Jason Rhodes seconded the motion.

• This motion is duplicate of the recent policy change to enable Neighborhood Charter to move sufficient economically disadvantaged applicants from Zones 2 and 3 into Zone 1, to statistically increase the likelihood the goal of 22.8% economically disadvantaged enrollments will be achieved.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

III. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

Jason Rhodes made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Angela Christie seconded the motion. The board **VOTED** to approve the motion. There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 6:56 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Kristi Malloy

Coversheet

PTCA Monthly Update

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: II. PTCA Update A. PTCA Monthly Update FYI

PTCA Report - 3.17.22 Governing Board Meeting.pdf

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM

PTCA Report

Governing Board Meeting March 17, 2022





Membership Report (as of 3/17/22)

- ▶ Goal: \$11,000
- ▶ YTD: \$7,125 (65%)

Financial Update (as of 3/17/22)

- YTD: \$14,586 from School Store, kickball, Bingo Night and Membership.
- We've submitted a budget for \$60,080 for the 2022-23 School Year.





Event Updates

- Ticket sales for Bingo have been going well. We've been meeting with MC staff for our first outdoor event at the MC.
- RWTW registration is live. As of yesterday, 53 people had registered.
- Teacher Appreciation Week March 27-April 1st.

FY2022-23 Updates

- Actively recruiting new board members.
- Working with DEAT to start planning next year.
- Meeting with Fund Development to discuss more partnership opportunities.



Coversheet

Executive Director's Monthly Report

Section:
Item:
Purpose:
Submitted by:
Related Material:

III. School Leadership Updates
B. Executive Director's Monthly Report FYI
Executive Director's Report - March 17, 2022.pdf

CREATE Update.pdf CREATE Resolution (2).pdf



Executive Director's Report March 17, 2022

In this report

- Update on diversity, equity & inclusion strategic planning
- Summer task forces
- SY23 calendar & schedule
- SY23 lottery & admissions
- CREATE Update





Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Rollout

Engaging the School Family

- Governing Board discussion January 22
- Diversity/Equity Action Team Report shared on February 4; discussion pending
- Faculty/Staff discussion February 18
- PTCA discussion March 8
- Faculty/Staff work on recommendation implementation March 14
- Diversity/Equity Action Team March 18
- Next steps: Parent/caregiver engagement



Summer Task Forces

Summer Task Forces

- K-8 Integration/Alignment
- Achievement Gaps
- DE&I Implementation/Advancement
- Faculty/Staff are applying now for seats on the task forces of interest to them
- Meetings will be held virtually over the course of the summer
- Task forces will report out at the faculty/staff retreat



SY23 Daily Schedule

SY23 Daily Schedule

- Maintain current arrival/dismissal times
- Challenge: Address the need for faculty/staff planning & collaboration time within their contracted hours
 - EarlyCare management
 - EarlyCare participation
 - Constraints on morning planning/collaboration time vs. afternoon planning/collaboration time



Update: SY23 Lottery & Admissions

SY23 Student Applications

•	Total open seats:	72
•	Total applications:	698
	 Total in district applications: 	423
	 Total applications from economically disadvantaged 	families: 108
•	Kindergarten open seats:	62
•	Kindergarten in-district applications:	208
	 Applications with siblings attending: 	23
	 Applications from economically disadvantaged famil 	lies: 25
•	6th grade open seats:	10
•	6th grade in-district applications:	71
	 Applications from economically disadvantaged famil Powered by BoardOn Track 	lies: 13
	Powered by BoardOn Tack	

Socio-economic Diversity Goal

- Our charter petition sets our socio-economic diversity goal at 23% for economically disadvantaged families based on neighborhood data gathered at the time of the petition
- SY23 open seats = 72
- 23% of 72 = 17
- Goal = at least 17 of our newly admitted students are from economically disadvantaged households

- Applicants have until March 21 to respond to their offer, and can change to another school during or after that date. The following information is updated as of March 17:
- Kindergarten

0	Registration in progress/Registration completed:	45

- Economically disadvantaged Registration in progress/Registration completed:
- 6th grade
 - Registration in progress/Registration completed:
 - Economically disadvantaged Registration in progress/Registration completed: 5*

7

Addresses of non Zone 1 economically disadvantaged applicants



- Pending applications from economically disadvantaged families:
 - Kindergarten: 10
 - 6th grade: 2
- Waitlist positions economically disadvantaged families:
 - Kindergarten: NA
 - 1st grade: First 5 waitlist positions
 - 2nd grade: First 5 waitlist positions
 - 3rd grade: Position 5
 - 4th grade: First 3 waitlist positions
 - 5th grade: First 5 waitlist positions
 - 6th grade: First 5 waitlist positions
 - 7th grade: Position 4

Ο

8th grade: First 4 waitlist provisions BoardOnTrack

- Outreach to pending applicants from economically disadvantaged families:
 - Invitation to kindergarten lunch and recess
 - Virtual information session
 - Saturday tour
 - Telephone outreach



CREATE Update

Powered by BoardOnTrack

CREATE Update

- CREATE will transition to Georgia State
- Elizabeth Hearn will step down as executive director
- Changes effective at the end of this fiscal year
- Proposed resolution from Governing Board

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM



ATLANTA NEIGHBORHOOD CHARTER SCHOOL

Helping students learn to use their minds well

From: Chuck Meadows, Executive Director
To: Lee Kynes, Governing Board Chair
Date: March 2, 2002
Re: An update on recent developments with respect to CREATE

The Governing Board has taken active interest in the residency year in and year out – not only in the fulfillment of its fiduciary responsibilities but also in the positive impact the initiative has had in furthering the mission of the school. This is a commitment that has endured under your leadership.

As you know, I began conversations with Elizabeth Hearn almost two years ago about the potential for CREATE to grow and expand its reach, and the manner in which this potential growth might be stunted if the residency remained a program of Neighborhood Charter. As CREATE continued to successfully partner with more schools, increase the size of its staff, and recruit more donors and supporters, it seemed time for the organization to move out from under our school's umbrella and establish a bigger footprint locally and perhaps beyond.

We discussed a number of options to be considered for the next evolutionary phase, including the formation of a new and independent 501(c)(3) with its own board that could support and lead CREATE into the next chapter. This alternative seemed even more compelling as CREATE's funding seemed in jeopardy as we entered 2020.

Another option considered was for the residency to shift over into Georgia State University – our founding partner. Over the course of the past 18 months or so, this option seemed to gain more traction with both CREATE and the university. Now that this transition is nearing its final stages, I do think it is important that we as a school adapt, but not discontinue our collaborative partnership with this very important initiative. We have invested so much in its growth and development. We continue to hire its residents onto our faculty, and there is an ongoing connection to the work and the people who are focused on it everyday.

I am glad to know that I can count on you, the rest of the Governing Board, my fellow school leaders at Neighborhood Charter and my colleagues at other schools to cooperatively support and continue to be involved in this next stage in CREATE's future.



A resolution of the Governing Board of Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School, hereafter referred to as Neighborhood Charter

Whereas it is part of Neighborhood Charter's mission to both advocate in the larger community for student centered schools and build an inclusive community of students, parents and educators;

Whereas - in the pursuit of its mission - Neighborhood Charter is a founding partner in the teacher residency now known as CREATE;

Whereas CREATE has heretofore operated under steady, committed and effective leadership;

Whereas Neighborhood Charter has committed its own financial resources, brokered partnerships, promoted the residency both locally and nationally, successfully raised matching funds from the philanthropic community in support of federal grants, counseled CREATE leadership and invested in the professional development of CREATE employees;

Whereas Neighborhood Charter has a vested interest in the furtherance of CREATE's vision and the sustainability of the residency;

Now therefore be it resolved that the Governing Board of Neighborhood Charter seeks to reaffirm a productive, supportive and collaborative partnership with the Georgia State University College of Education and Human Development in the interest of the vision, mission and goals of CREATE and the well-being and continued success and support of its employees, patrons and partners.

Coversheet

Vote: CREATE Resolution

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: III. School Leadership Updates C. Vote: CREATE Resolution Vote

CREATE Resolution (1).pdf



A resolution of the Governing Board of Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School, hereafter referred to as Neighborhood Charter

Whereas it is part of Neighborhood Charter's mission to both advocate in the larger community for student centered schools and build an inclusive community of students, parents and educators;

Whereas - in the pursuit of its mission - Neighborhood Charter is a founding partner in the teacher residency now known as CREATE;

Whereas CREATE has heretofore operated under steady, committed and effective leadership;

Whereas Neighborhood Charter has committed its own financial resources, brokered partnerships, promoted the residency both locally and nationally, successfully raised matching funds from the philanthropic community in support of federal grants, counseled CREATE leadership and invested in the professional development of CREATE employees;

Whereas Neighborhood Charter has a vested interest in the furtherance of CREATE's vision and the sustainability of the residency;

Now therefore be it resolved that the Governing Board of Neighborhood Charter seeks to reaffirm a productive, supportive and collaborative partnership with the Georgia State University College of Education and Human Development in the interest of the vision, mission and goals of CREATE and the well-being and continued success and support of its employees, patrons and partners.
Coversheet

Monthly DEAT update

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: IV. DEAT Update A. Monthly DEAT update FYI

ANCS Board Mtg DEAT Report March 2022.docx

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School Governing Board Monthly Meeting March 17, 2022 Diversity and Equity Action Team (DEAT) Monthly Report

Overview

- DEAT met on Friday, March 11, 2022 to discuss preliminary lottery results, community outreach efforts, activity ideas, and the merging of DEAT and PTCA. DEAT is scheduled to meet with Chuck Meadows, Executive Director on Friday, March 18, 2022 to further discuss merger and gain insight as to what the expectations will entail and rollout phase.
- DEAT in collaboration with the PTCA suggested hosting an event for parents prior to the end of the school year. The two ideas mentioned were a farm tour and learning the importance of farming/crop cultivation through the lens of equity and diversity or hosting a book club. Also, the team considered forming a sponsorship program for new families and planning a welcome social during the summer to encourage engagement and participation.
- Overall DEAT is optimistic regarding the merger with the PTCA and agrees that it will make a deeper impact within the school family and broader community towards ensuring equity and diversity is intentional in all parent and teacher related activities.

Respectfully submitted,

Carla Wells ANCS Board Member DEAT Liaison

Coversheet

Educational Excellence Committee Monthly Report

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: V. Committee Updates A. Educational Excellence Committee Monthly Report FYI

March 22 EE Update.pdf



Educational Excellence Committee Update

ANCS Governing Board Meeting | March 17, 2022

I. Overview of Lottery Results

- Significant increases in numbers of economically disadvantaged students offered and accepting offers of admission
- Increased lottery participation from economically disadvantaged families in zone 1

II. Assessment of DEAT's Lottery Outreach Efforts

• Distribution of literature at area pre-schools & Martin Street Plaza, & meetings with parents at Sheltering Arms Open House

III. Assessment of Impact of Power 30 (MC) and Phonics Focus (EC) Initiatives

• Leadership Team reports measurable impact of the Power 30 (math fluency) program at the MC as well as the increased focus on phonics at the EC

IV. Summer Learning Opportunities

• Using *The Courier* to inform school community of online learning opportunities via school's subscriptions to a variety of educational programs

Coversheet

Finance & Operations Committee Monthly Report

Section:V. Committee UpdatesItem:D. Finance & Operations Committee Monthly ReportPurpose:FYISubmitted by:Related Material:BusOps Comm BOD Update_March 2022.pdf02_28_22 Finance Committee Report FY22 DRAFT v3 (1) (1).xlsxStatement of Financial Position 02-28-2022 (1).xlsxStatement of Activity 02-28-2022 Month-end (1).xlsxStatement of Activity 02-28-2022 YTD (2).xlsxPTCA - Transaction Detail 02-28-2022 (1).xlsx



Finance and Operations Committee Update

Financial Update:

- Cash balance (period end 02/28/2022) = \$3.3M.
- \$906K in investments
- The school received approval for reimbursement of outdoor improvement expenses from CARES Act funds for the EC. The school was informed that CARES Act funds could not be used for capital improvements to facilities owned by the school, so reimbursement for the MC outdoor improvements was rejected.
- The SY 2022-2023 budget is underway. The draft reviewed by the Finance and Operations Committee was conservative and near completion. The first of two public meetings to review the budget will be on Monday, April 18. The second will be on Thursday, April 21.

Building and Grounds Update:

- The Facilities Team is working on developing/updating the HVAC maintenance schedule.
- An outdoor wash station is in progress at the school farm.

The following file is attached to this PDF. You will need to open this packet in an application that supports attachments to pdf files, e.g. <u>Adobe Reader</u>:

02_28_22 Finance Committee Report FY22 DRAFT v3 (1) (1).xlsx

The following file is attached to this PDF. You will need to open this packet in an application that supports attachments to pdf files, e.g. <u>Adobe Reader</u>:

Statement of Financial Position 02-28-2022 (1).xlsx

The following file is attached to this PDF. You will need to open this packet in an application that supports attachments to pdf files, e.g. <u>Adobe Reader</u>:

Statement of Activity 02-28-2022 Month-end (1).xlsx

The following file is attached to this PDF. You will need to open this packet in an application that supports attachments to pdf files, e.g. <u>Adobe Reader</u>:

Statement of Activity 02-28-2022 YTD (2).xlsx

The following file is attached to this PDF. You will need to open this packet in an application that supports attachments to pdf files, e.g. <u>Adobe Reader</u>:

PTCA - Transaction Detail 02-28-2022 (1).xlsx

Coversheet

Vote: Revise Investment of Funds Policy

Section:	V. Committee Updates
ltem:	E. Vote: Revise Investment of Funds Policy
Purpose:	Vote
Submitted by:	
Related Material:	Vote to Revise Investment of Funds Policy.pdf



Vote to Revise Investment of Funds Policy

- The Finance and Business Operations Committee intends to invest \$500,000 of the \$566,745 currently held in an Edward Jones money market account in a low- to medium-risk mutual fund account.
- The Finance and Business Operations Committee will monitor the account to ensure that:
 - a) the associated expense ratio does not exceed 1.5%;
 - b) the invested funds are liquid;
 - c) the selected investment opportunities align with Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School's mission through an Environmental, Social, and Governance investment strategy; and
 - d) investments are not made in any funds that include tobacco, alcohol, or firearms industries.



3.2.13 Investment of Funds

Purpose

This policy outlines the investment of funds and the objectives that must be met when making investment decisions.

Duration

This policy is temporary and must be renewed annually to ensure it reflects the long-term investment risk orientation of ANCS and shall be included in the Annual Financial Resolution and approved by the Board each year.

Policy

SECTION 1. Investment Policy

- a. The Governing Board has a direct oversight role over all investment decisions. Ithas delegated daily supervisory responsibility for the management of funds to the Director of Finance and Operations.
- b. The Chief Financial Officer shall ensure thatany investment of state funds is done in accordance with applicable state laws and rules, including the Financial Manual for Local Units of Administration.
- c. The Chief Financial Officer shall develop/propose policy recommendations to the Finance and Operations Committee with regards to the management of all investment funds. Changes to this policy require Board approval.
- d. The investment of state funds shall be made with judgment and care and not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of capital and theprobable derived income.

SECTION 2. Investment Objectives

- a. Investment of state funds shall be governed by the following objectives, in order of priority:
 - i. Preservation and safety of principal
 - ii. Liquidity
 - iii. Yield

SECTION 3. Investment Management Firm and/or Officer

a. The Board may determine that it is necessary to contract with an investment management firm that is registered under the appropriate governmental entities to provide for the investment and management of the funds.



b. Such a contract shall be confirmed by the Finance and Operations Committee each fiscal year. The Finance & Operations Committee may direct the Director of Finance and Operations to modify the investment management firm.

SECTION 4. Investment Guidelines

- a. The following investments are approved by the Governing Board
 - a. Certificate of Deposit
 - b. Money Market Fund
 - c. Mutual Funds
- b. The tenor of these investments will be determined by the Finance and Operations Committee.
- c. The Chief Financial Officer should review quarterly performance of invested funds with the Finance and Operations Committee.
- d. New investments, re-investments and withdrawals should be approved by the Finance and Operations Committee in advance and inwriting to ensure the decisions are done in accordance with the current risk orientation of ANCS.
- e. The investments must meet all criteria as provided by the state.

SECTION 5. Discrete Maintenance of Records

- a. The Chief Financial Officer shall ensure that all investments will be maintained in a discrete charter investment account.
- b. The investment account will be separate from any other accounts.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
11/16/2020	11/16/2020	08/1/2023



3.2.14 Monthly Financial Statements

See "Annual Operating Budget" and See "Reporting".

Coversheet

Governance Committee Monthly Report

Section:V. Committee UpdatesItem:F. Governance Committee Monthly ReportPurpose:FYISubmitted by:Rhonda CollinsRelated Material:March Meeting - Board Governance Committee Report.pdf



Board Governance Committee Report – March 17, 2022

Prepared by Rhonda Collins (Vice Chair, Board Governance Committee Chair)

Policy Review Project:

- The Committee completed its review of the Section 5 Personnel policies.
- The Committee has begun its review of the Section 4 Student and Family Academic Program policies.

End of report.

Coversheet

Vote: Personnel policies (section 5)

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: V. Committee Updates G. Vote: Personnel policies (section 5) Vote

(5) Personnel Policies (proposed revisions 3.10.22).pdf



5: Personnel Policies



5.1.	Nondiscrimination 3	
A		Forma
A		Forma
_		Forma
5.2.	ZAccident or Injury in the Workplace 4	
		Forma
		Forma
•		Forma
		Forma
53	9Attendance and Leave 6	not che
		Forma
A		Forma
A		Forma
A		Forma
5.4.	10Background Checks 7	not che
A		Forma
_		Forma
_		Forma
A		Forma
5.5.	11Benefits Offerings and Eligibility 8	not che
		Forma
5.6.	13Cell Phone and Computer Internet Use 10	not che
0.0.		
A		Forma
A		Forma
		Forma
·		Forma not che
5.7.	15Compensation 12	
A		Forma
A		Forma
A		 Forma
A		Forma
5.8.	19Confidential Personnel File 15	not che
	Page 2 of 62	

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM

ON THE SCH		
		Forma
		Forma
5.9.	21Conflict of Interest – Employee 17	
		Forma
		Forma
5.10.	24Drug Alcohol Substance Abuse 20	
•		Forma
•		 Forma
5.11.	26Employee Evaluation 22	
•		Forma
•		 Forma
5.12.	29Employee Levels 25	
•		Forma
•		 Forma
5.13.	<u>31</u> Employee Grievances 27	
		Forma
		 Forma
5.14.	33Hiring and Evaluation of Immediate Family Members 29	
		Forma
•		 Forma
5.15.	Error! Bookmark not defined. Hiring 31	
•		Forma
A		 Forma
	Page 3 of 62	

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM



CHARTER SCHO	ð	
5.16.	37Leave of Absence 33	
		Forma
A		Forma
5.17.	45Professional Conduct 38	
A		Forma
A		Forma
5.18.	47Professional Growth 40	
		Forma
5.19.	Error! Bookmark not defined. Progressive Discipline 41	
5.20.	52Reporting Misconduct 44	
A		Forma
A		Forma
E 01	E4Sexual Disprimination Haragement and Missendust	
5.21.	54Sexual Discrimination Harassment and Misconduct 45	
		Forma
A		Forma
5 22	57Smoke-Free School Zone 48	
0.22.		
		F arma
		Forma
A		Forma
5 23	58Weapons 49	
0.20.		
		Forma
A		Forma
A		TUTIA
5.24.	59Workplace Violence 50	
	Page 4 of 62	

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM





5.1. Nondiscrimination

See "4.1.1 Nondiscrimination."

Purpose

This policy outlines the nondiscrimination statement regarding students and employees of ANCS.

Duration

This policy is permanent.

Policy

ANCS believes that all students and employees are entitled to equal opportunities regardless of their race, color, religion, sex, citizenship, ethnic or national origin, age, disability, medical status, military status, veteran status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status under local, Georgia, or federal law. No student or employee shall be subjected to discrimination or harassment in any of ANCS's programs, activities, or practices because of the student's or employee's race, color, religion, sex, citizenship, ethnic or national origin, age, disability, medical status, military status, veteran status, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status, status or employee identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, ancestry, or any legally protected status.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
02/01/18	02/01/18	08/17

Forma Forma



5.2. Accident or Injury in the Workplace

Purpose

This policy instructs staff on action to take if there is an accident or injury in the workplace.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Immediate Procedure

- a. All employee injuries that occur on ANCS premises should immediately be reported to the Campus Principal where the injury occurred and/or the immediate supervisor of the employee.
- b. Upon observation or notification of an employee injury, the Campus Principal or supervisor should take action to assess the level of medical emergency and immediately obtain the appropriate medical care.
- c. In the case of major or life-threatening emergencies, immediately call 911 and request emergency medical assistance.
- d. In the case of minor or non-life-threatening injuries, provide first aid or medical treatment through the School Nurse, as available.

SECTION 2. Incident Report

- a. Once the employee's injuries have been addressed, the Campus Principal or supervisor should complete an Incident Report detailing the following:
 - i. The employee involved
 - ii. Others present
 - iii. The date, time, location, and description of the accident
- b. The Incident Report should be forwarded to the <u>Executive</u> Director of Finance and <u>Operations</u>, who will then initiate a claim with ANCS's Workers' Compensation carrier.

SECTION 3. Additional Medical Treatment

- a. Should the employee need additional medical treatment, they should be directed to select one of the Workers' Compensation medical providers listed on the Official Notice of Georgia Workers' Compensation Law, which is posted in the teachers' lounge.
- b. A Workers' Compensation claim representative will be assigned to provide the injured employee with further instructions regarding their medical care.

Approval



<u>Original</u> Policy approval date:	Last revised Policy effective date:	<u>Next</u> Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.3. Attendance and Leave

Purpose

This policy governs attendance and leave for ANCS personnel.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Attendance and Leave

- a. All staff members are expected to adhere to the school's stated policies for attendance and leave. It is important that each staff member sign in each day and sign out if he/she leaves the building before the end of the school day (and sign back in if returning before the end of the school day). An accurate sign-in/sign-out sheet is necessary in the event of an emergency or school evacuation.
- b. All employees are required to work according to the schedule and dates stated in their employment agreement.

SECTION 2. Professional Duties and Events Outside of School Hours

- a. Teachers are required to participate in programs related to their professional duties that may be outside of school hours. These days include teacher in-service sessions conducted within the regular work hours, staff meetings, and parent-teacher-student conferences.
- b. All employees are encouraged to attend school functions and events that occur after-hours to maintain an integrated presence in the school community. Employees will be notified of those functions they are required to attend.
- b.

Related Policies

Attendance, Scheduling, and Use of Substitutes

Inclement Weather

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

-

Forma

Forma numbe



5.4. Background Checks

Purpose

ANCS wishes to create a safe learning environment for students to ensure student success. Therefore, the <u>ANCS</u>Board employs individuals who act as role models for students and who demonstrate the highest level of integrity.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Fingerprinting and Criminal Record Checks Prior to Employment

	Ро	licy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:		
A	ppro	oval		1		
	a.		will provide an official copy of he I records (<u>Confidential Personne</u>	• • • •	n in	
S	ECT	ION 3. Transcript and	Diploma Verification			
	a.	All employees of ANCS	S shall fill out the federal I-9 for	m at the time of employme	ent.	Forma
S		this policy.	ve Director is authorized to dev Employment Eligibility	velop regulations to implem	nent	Forma
		at ANCS shall occur ev	of non-certificated personnel or error fifth year of employment.			Forma
	c.	Substitute teachers will	be responsible for paying the	associated fee.		Forma
	b.	The fingerprinting and time.	record checks shall be initiated	by ANCS at the appropria	ate	Forma
	a.		C.G.A. § 20-2-211(e)(1), all per yed by <u>ANCS</u> the Board, shall b			Forma Forma Forma
	~	In accordance with OC	C = A = E = 20 = 2 = 211(a)(1) all par	connol cortificated as well	00	-

06/16/15

08/17

07/01/15



5.5. Benefits Offerings and Eligibility

Purpose

This policy governs benefits offerings and eligibility for ANCS employees.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Eligibility

- a. Employees who are employed at a rate of .5 FTE (50%) or greater are eligible to participate in the health benefit programs. Current employees who did not elect to participate in health benefits at the time of hire may later do so during an annual Open Enrollment period. Newly hired employees are eligible to enroll to participate in benefit programs during the first 30 days of employment.
- b. For new faculty members (191-day contracted employees), benefits become effective on the first of the month following 60 days after their contract date, which for most new faculty means that their benefits would become effective September 1 (60 days after their contract date of July 1). For new staff members, benefits become effective 30 days following their date of hire.

c. The benefits offered by ANCS may change at any time at the sole discretion of ANCS.

SECTION 2. Benefit Cost

- a. ANCS covers <u>at least</u> 75% of the premium cost of medical, life, and dental and vision coverages for plan participants. The employee's <u>25%</u> share of the premium cost is automatically deducted from each paycheck on a pre-tax basis.
- b. All employees participate in the Teachers Retirement System (TRS), and a percentage of gross pay is withheld on a pre-tax basis as a retirement contribution._-Additionally, ANCS contributes a percentage of your gross pay to TRS on your behalf. These percentages vary from year to year.
- c. Employees pay the full costs of optional coverages, such as 403b or supplemental insurance plans.

SECTION 3. Health Benefit Programs

a. ANCS offers a health benefit package that includes medical and \$50,000 in life insurance, along with dental and vision coverage options. Employees may elect to participate in the health and life program only, or the dental and vision program only, or may elect to participate in both programs. Newly hired employees must elect to participate in the health benefit programs within 30 days of employment. If a new employee does not elect to participate within the initial 30 days, they must wait until the next Open Enrollment period to do so.

Format Format Format



b. Currently, our Open Enrollment period for health benefits occurs during December of each year, and enrollment and/or changes are effective January 1 of each year. Enrollment forms are made available to employees during the Open Enrollment period.

SECTION 4. Supplemental Benefit Plans

- a. ANCS also makes supplemental benefit coverages, such as accident, long-term disability, or cancer insurance, available to employees. Employees electing these coverages may pay their premiums through payroll deduction.
- b. Supplemental policies offered and covered by the school: \$50,000 life insurance policy.

SECTION 5. Supplemental Retirement Plan

a. ANCS also offers employees a way to supplement their retirement funding through payrolldeducted contributions to a 403b retirement plan. The contributions are deducted on a pretax basis and deposited with a retirement plan administrator who maintains a tax-deferred account for the employee.

SECTION 6. Workers' Compensation

a. ANCS covers all employees under a Workers' Compensation insurance program. This coverage provides benefits to the employee should they be injured while performing their job duties for ANCS.

Related Policies

Benefits Administration

Payroll

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.6. Cell Phone and Computer Internet Use

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that users utilize computer/Internet access in a manner consistent with the purpose of providing this Internet service.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Cell Phone Use

Staff members should exercise discretion when using a cell phone for communications related to their job while in the presence of students. Staff members should not engage in cell phone use for non-school-related communications while in the presence of students. Staff may use their cell phones in the faculty lounge if they are on a break or off active duty while children are out of the classroom. This includes texting, emailing, application use, etc., as well as talking.

SECTION 2. Computer and Internet Use

- a. ANCS offers use of school computers to staff, including Internet access. Users of these computers are expected to exercise care and follow all operating instructions, safety standards, and guidelines for their use. Any damage to or loss of a school computer caused by an individual user <u>maywill</u> be that user's responsibility to fix, including and up to paying for the replacement of the computer.
- b. All users must abide by the following:
 - i. Respect the privacy, safety, and confidentiality of others by neither disclosing nor disseminating personal information on the Internet. This shall include email, chat rooms, and all forms of direct Internet communications.
 - ii. Respect computer and network equipment. Equipment may not be altered, nor can access to computer or network configurations be made without the knowledge and consent of the Network Administrator(s).
 - iii. Do not download or install software, music, or other programs from the Internet onto a school computer.
 - iv. Understand that software piracy is a federal offense, and that ANCS' network may not be used for copying, downloading, distributing, or storing commercial software not licensed by ANCS.
 - v. Abide by copyright laws.
 - vi. Understand individual users are responsible for all activity on their accounts, even if they are not the one behind the keyboard; for this reason, users

Forma



should keep their accounts secure and not share their passwords with anyone else.

- vii. Understand that ANCS is an educational community, and that as such our educational function is our paramount mission. Therefore, users should defer their recreational activities to times outside of academic hours.
- viii. Abstain from accessing inappropriate web sites or computer games that include pornography, as well as images or language that are obscene or that are considered harmful to minors as defined by the Children's Internet Protection Act (aka CIPA).
- ix. Ask questions regarding computer procedures when unsure of how to do something.
- c. It should be further understood that users of ANCS computing and networking resources cannot assume absolute privacy. Users should expect that network connections will be monitored and computer files may be inspected.
- d. ANCS staff members are expected to use school resources responsibly, ethically, and lawfully to provide instructional support. Using electronic technology is a privilege, not a right, that ANCS may discontinue at any time. ANCS reserves the right to examine electronic mail messages, files of all types on ANCS computers, web browsers, cache files, web browser bookmarks, logs of websites visited, and other information stored on or passing through ANCS networks or standalone systems. This right of access ensures compliance with policies, assists with internal investigations, and assists in the management of ANCS information systems. Therefore, ANCS employees or persons using ANCS electronic resources should have NO expectation of privacy while using any ANCS network or standalone system.

Related Guidance

See School-Issued Mobile Phone Guidelines

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma



5.7. Compensation

Purpose

ANCS aims to attract, retain, and motivate a high-quality and competent workforce at all levels with a comprehensive, competitive compensation program designed to compensate employees for their skills, abilities, performance, and years of experience.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Authorization for Salary and Compensation Administration

The Executive Director is authorized to maintain and administer the compensation plan adopted by the Board and to develop regulations for administering that plan.

SECTION 2. Compensation Plan and Salary Schedule

The compensation plan shall be fair, externally comparable, internally consistent, and within the resources available to ANCS. Salaries of all employees shall be in accordance with Board policy.

- a. Salary ranges for all positions will be proposed annually by the Executive Director to the <u>FinanceBusiness</u> & Operations Committee then brought to the ANCS Governing Board for adoption. Schedules and changes will be guided by (but will not necessarily replicate) other metro Atlanta public charter schools' and districts' salary schedules, education, experience, and cost-of-living adjustments based on economic conditions.
- b. The initial starting salary for all ANCS employees will be determined by the Executive Director, based upon the Board-approved salary ranges.
- c. The Executive Director is authorized to offer a one-time signing bonus as additional compensation for hard-to-staff positions. The positions for which signing bonuses are offered and the total amount of each signing bonus must be approved by the <u>FinanceBusiness</u> & Operations Committee.
- d. Additional longer-term responsibilities taken on outside of contractual responsibilities may be compensated with a stipend as determined by the Executive Director. In addition to any Board-approved cost-of-living adjustments based on economic conditions, employees (other than the Executive Director) whose contracts are renewed <u>maywill</u> also receive a lump sum bonus at certain points in their tenure at ANCS according to the schedule below established by the ANCS Board. These tenure bonuses are awarded not only to acknowledge and reward an employee's longevity and sustained performance at ANCS, but also to encourage the employee to continue his or her employment with ANCS.



e. Tenure bonuses will be paid out to eligible employees by September 30th of each school year based on the availability of funding as determined by the Board. Any employees on an improvement plan at the start of a new contract period will not be eligible for a tenure bonus unless otherwise determined by the Executive Director (see Employee Evaluation).

The tenure bonus program will be implemented starting with the 2017–2018 school year and will not be applied retroactively; therefore, the first tenure bonuses will not be paid until the start of the 2018–2019 school year. (For example, if Teacher A has six years of experience with ANCS coming into the 2017–2018 school year, that year would be her seventh and she would therefore be eligible for a \$3,500 bonus to be paid by September 30 of the 2018–2019 school year. If Teacher B has three years of experience with ANCS coming into the 2017–2018 school year, that year would be her fourth and the 2018-2019 school year would be her fifth. She would then be eligible for a \$2,500 bonus to be paid by September 30 of the 2018-2019 school year would be her fifth. She would then be eligible for a \$2,500 bonus to be paid by September 30 of the 2019–2020 school year.)

e. <u>The following chart, along with bullet points (f) and (g) below, are for illustrative</u> <u>purposes only.</u> Whether to award a tenure bonus and at what amount is at the Executive Director's sole discretion based on available funding.

	Forma
-	Forma

Forma

Tenure at ANCS	Tenure Bonus Amount
After the completion of 5 years at ANCS	\$2,500
After the completion of 7 years at ANCS	\$3,500
After the completion of 10 years at ANCS	\$5,000
After the completion of 12 years at ANCS	\$6,000
After the completion of 15 years at ANCS	\$7,500
After the completion of 18 years at ANCS	\$9,000

- f. After the 19th year of employment at ANCS, an employee will receive either a 1% salary increase or a Board-approved cost-of-living salary increase (whichever is greater) annually for the remainder of the employee's employment at ANCS.
- g. As noted above, the tenure bonus program is in part intended to provide an incentive for an employee to remain at ANCS. Nevertheless, an employee who retires from ANCS at the end of a contract period in which the employee would be eligible for a tenure bonus will receive the bonus provided that the employee (1)

Forma

Forma



officially retires in accordance with the rules of the Teachers Retirement System of Georgia and (2) satisfies the other criteria of this policy.

SECTION 3. Salary for Higher Certificates and Advanced Degrees

a. The salary track for improved certificates and relevant advanced degrees will be adjusted in the following school year. Faculty should submit the improved certificates or advanced degrees prior to the issuance of contracts. A teacher who earns the improved certificate or advanced degree prior to the first pay period of an annual contract may petition for the salary increase to be effective in that contract year. A determination of whether an advanced degree is relevant to an employee's position will be at the discretion of the Executive Director.

SECTION 4. Certificates and Licenses

Each certificated employee will hold the appropriate certificate or license for his/her assignment as required by the charter and charter school law.

SECTION 5. Salary for Prior Service

- a. The Executive Director will grant newly employed employees steps on the salary schedule for equivalent and/or relevant prior experience as verified and approved by the Executive Director and/or Campus Principals. A determination of whether prior experience is equivalent and/or relevant will be at the discretion of the Executive Director.
- b. Pay will be retroactive if verification of acceptable prior service is received within 90 days of the employment start date.

SECTION 6. Pay Periods

a. ANCS personnel are paid on a 12-month basis.	Forma
b. Paychecks are issued on the fifth and the twentieth of the month.	Forma
c. Direct deposit is available and encouraged.	Forma

SECTION 7. Stipends

a. Stipends are in addition to an employee's salary, defined in his/her contract. They are awarded for duties outside of the normal job description of faculty or staff. They are representative of a specific short-term or part-time need that is clearly defined by the Executive Director. and approved by the Governing Board, Roles with stipends are advertised like all other vacancies. announced to existing school employees and are not posted externally as open positions are. Roles with stipends are announced to existing school employees and are not posted externally as open positions are. Any existing employee who meets the posted qualifications may express interest to the Executive Director in assuming the role in addition to their defined responsibilities in their existing contract.

Forma


b. The exact amount and duration of the stipend is commensurate with the level of time, effort, and specialized knowledge required for the duties. Stipends are defined by an addendum to the school contract and last, at the longest, for one year. For roles that are repetitive or extend beyond one year, a new contract will be presented for approval and offered either to the same employee or another defined for the role.

Forma

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.8. Confidential Personnel File

Purpose

This policy governs confidential personnel files for ANCS employees.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Maintaining Confidential Personnel Files

- a. ANCS shall maintain a confidential personnel file for each employee.
- b. The personnel file will contain evaluation documents and any other employment-related documents or correspondence. Personal data on all employees, including current address, contact phone numbers, relevant medical information, emergency contact numbers, and next of kin, will be included in the employee's personnel file.
- c. All documents placed in the personnel file will have been signed by all concerned parties.
- d. Personnel files will be maintained by the Business <u>Management and Operations</u> Office. These files are locked during and after normal business hours, with access limited. The <u>Director of Finance and Operations and the Executive Director and</u>/ Principals will be the only individuals with a key to these files.

SECTION_-2. Updating Employee Personal Data

- a. Employees shall promptly notify the <u>-Executive</u> Director of Finance and Operations_and Principal in writing of any changes in personal data that may impact their employment.
- b. Personal mailing addresses, telephone numbers, dependent information, emergency contact information, and other status changes must be accurate and current at all times.

SECTION 3. Reviewing Confidential Personnel Files

- a. Personnel files are the property of_ANCS, and access to the information contained therein is restricted except as may be required by state or federal laws or the judicial process.
- b. Only authorized representatives of the school, the employee, or the employee's designated representative with a legitimate reason to review information in a file are allowed to do so. With reasonable advance notice, an employee may review material and/or request a copy of any or all of the materials at the employee's cost in the employee's file, but only in the presence of the <u>Executive</u>-Director of Finance and Operations or the designated file custodian. With written authorization from the employee, the employee's representative may review and/or request copies of file contents.



Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.9. Conflict of Interest – Employee

Purpose

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that ANCS employees' private financial interests and relationships do not conflict with their obligations to act objectively and with integrity as school employees.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

- a. Beyond the list of guidelines below, it is the good judgment of employees that offers the best protection against potential conflicts of interest. Employees who have questions about a potential conflict of interest should discuss the situation with the Executive Director, Director of Finance and Operations, and/or the Principal.
 - i. Each employee has a duty to act in the best interests of the students and the school.
 - ii. No ANCS employee shall use his or her influence or authority as an ANCS official to sell or effect a sale, directly or indirectly, for personal gain, to the school or to any ANCS employee.
 - iii. No ANCS employee shall disclose confidential information concerning the school's intentions, its investments, its property development, sale, acquisition, or its purchasing or contracting activities.
 - iv. No ANCS employee shall solicit, accept, or agree to accept gifts, loans, gratuities, entertainment, transportation, lodging, meals, any ticket of admission, discounts, payment, or service, except those of nominal value (less than \$50.00), from any employee, student, parent, person, firm, or corporation that to his or her knowledge is interested directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever in business dealings with the school; provided, however, that an elected official who is a candidate for public office may accept campaign contributions and services in connection with any campaign.
 - v. If an employee accepts items or services of nominal value, the gift must be disclosed to the Principal. Advertising items and instructional products that are widely distributed may be accepted. Expressions of good will from the community as a token of retirement or a job well done may be accepted.
 - vi. No ANCS employee shall accept outside employment or business activity with obligations that may conflict, or appear to conflict, with the interests of ANCS, nor shall the employee conduct activities related to outside employment during the school/business day.
 - vii. Teachers employed by ANCS shall not teach or coach for pay any ANCS student during the regular school day. Teachers shall not tutor for pay any ANCS students they directly teach.



- viii. No ANCS employee shall advertise business or professional services or use system resources for personal or commercial enterprise.
- ix. No ANCS employee shall use his/her influence or authority as an ANCS official to affect the employment of a relative as defined herein, including hourly employees, contractors, and vendors. Such influence and/or authority includes participation in decisions regarding hiring, reappointment, placement, evaluation, rate of pay, salary increases, promotion, tenure, monetary awards, and/or discipline, even when the related employees are not in the same line of supervision or authority (<u>Hiring and Evaluation of Immediate Family Members, Vendor and Supplier Conflict of Interest</u>).
- x. No ANCS employee shall use his/her influence or authority as an ANCS official to affect the employment of an individual with whom he/she is engaged in a dating or romantic relationship, including hourly employees, contractors, and vendors. Such influence and/or authority includes participation in decisions regarding hiring, reappointment, placement, evaluation, rate of pay, salary increases, promotion, tenure, monetary awards, and/or discipline, even when the employees are not in the same line of supervision or authority.
- xi. No ANCS employee may occupy a position in the same line of authority as a relative as defined herein.
- b. For the purpose of this policy, relatives are defined as individuals who are related by blood, marriage, or adoption, including but not limited to the following relationships: spouse, child, stepchild, parent, step-parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, step-sibling, half-sibling, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, parent-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, any other relative living in the household of the employee, a person who is engaged to be married to the employee or who otherwise holds himself/herself out as, or is generally known as, the person whom the employee intends to marry or with whom the employee intends to form a household, or any other natural person having the same legal residence as the employee.
- c. Consultants or temporary employees who are retained by ANCS shall be subject to this policy.
- d. In the event that a potential conflict of interest situation arises, the employee who suspects the conflict should notify the Executive Director and, Principal, and/or Director of Finance and Operations. Employees who perform this reporting function in good faith will not be subject to any reprisal. Any employee who violates the policy shall be subject to discipline up to and including termination of employment. Any contract or subcontract made in violation of this policy may be voided and subject to termination (Reporting Misconduct).

Related Policies

Hiring and Evaluation of Immediate Family Members

Reporting Misconduct

Vendor and Supplier Conflict of Interest



Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.10. Drug Alcohol Substance Abuse

Purpose

This policy governs employee abuse of drugs, alcohol, and other controlled substances.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

- a. ANCS complies with all laws that regulate or prohibit the possession, use, or distribution of alcohol, illicit drugs, and controlled substances. The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of alcohol or a controlled substance, marijuana, or dangerous drug is prohibited at ANCS and at ANCS-sponsored activities at all times for all ANCS employees, in accordance with the Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act Amendments of 1989 and Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, O.C.G.A. 34-9-410, and the Georgia Drug-Free Public Work Force Act of 1990.
- b. Employees must perform their jobs safely and without the adverse influence of alcohol or controlled substances. ANCS prohibits all employees from possessing, using, manufacturing, dispensing, selling, distributing, or being under the influence of illegal drugs or unauthorized prescription drugs, and from the use, sale, distribution, or possession of drug paraphernalia. All employees are prohibited from unlawfully possessing, using, manufacturing, dispensing, selling, distributing, or being under the influence of alcohol.
 - i. "Illegal drugs" or "illicit drugs" mean any controlled substance or imitation controlled substance whose unauthorized manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, consumption, use, or sale is prohibited by federal or state law.
 - ii. "Unauthorized use of prescription drugs" means use of a drug by anyone other than the person for whom the drug was prescribed, or in any manner that is prohibited by federal or state laws.
- c. The actions prohibited by this policy do not include the lawful and proper use of drugs prescribed by a physician or over-the-counter medications that are taken as directed. However, no employee shall report to work or attempt to engage in normal duties if he or she is knowingly impaired by drugs that are prescribed by a physician or by over-the-counter drugs.
- d. Compliance with this policy is mandatory for all ANCS employees. ANCS has a zero-tolerance policy for violations of this policy, which means violators will be addressed through ANCS, through prosecution in the courts, or both. Employees who violate this policy will be subject to personnel and appropriate disciplinary actions, which may include termination of employment, counseling, referral to an appropriate treatment or rehabilitation program, a warning, placement on strict probation, unpaid suspension from employment, conditional continuation of employment, expulsion, discharge, and referral to the proper law enforcement authorities. Consideration may be given as to whether treatment or rehabilitation will be offered to employees who have self-identified and/or have provided appropriate documentation to substantiate difficulty with drugs or alcohol, so that they may meet the standards and requirements set forth by the policy.



- e. This policy applies at the following times:
 - i. During school hours or as a part of any of its business activities
 - ii. While on any property owned or leased by ANCS
 - iii. At any time during which the employee is acting in the course and scope of his or her employment with ANCS
 - iv. At any other time that the employee's violation of this policy has a direct and adverse effect on the performance of his or her job
- f. An employee shall notify his or her supervisor of any charge, conviction (or plea of guilty, no contest, or "nolo contendere") of any criminal drug or alcohol statute no later than the next business day after any such charge, conviction, or plea.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Powered by BoardOnTrack



5.11. Employee Evaluation

Purpose

This policy governs employee evaluations for ANCS personnel.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Employee Evaluation Systems

a. Under Georgia law, all teachers and school leaders must be evaluated using the state's Teacher Keys (TKES) or Leader Keys (LKES) evaluation systems. For all such employees, the state requirements of TKES or LKES will be followed. All other employees will be evaluated by the process described in the sections that follow.

SECTION 2. Employee Evaluation Cycles

- a. The process of evaluation at ANCS is one that is ultimately focused on giving clear and actionable feedback to support employees in the development of their practice and acknowledging professional growth.
- b. Employees are formally evaluated by their supervisors as a part of evaluation cycles:
 - i. Level 1 employees are involved in an evaluation cycle at least twice each year.
 - ii. Level 2 and 3 employees are involved in at least one evaluation cycle each year.
 - iii. For each employee, at least one evaluation cycle must be completed prior to the issuance of a new/renewed contract.
- c. At a minimum, an evaluation cycle consists of the following:
 - i. A pre-conference between the supervisor and employee.
 - ii. An evaluation of a reasonable amount of the employee's work by the supervisor using multiple sources of data (including the observation of at least one full class session for all teachers and associate teachers).
 - iii. A written evaluation report with information from data sources containing commendations and recommendations and an overall rating of "Unsatisfactory", "Progressing", "Proficient", or "Exemplary."
- d. At the start of the school year, each employee will meet with his/her supervisor by the end of September to review the criteria on which he/she will be evaluated and establish goals for the school year.

SECTION 2. Employee Evaluation Reports



- a. All evaluation reports will be signed by the employee, the employee's supervisor, and a Principal or the Executive Director. An employee's evaluation reports will be kept confidential in the employee's personnel file. An employee may submit a written reply to any evaluation report, and the reply will be attached to the report and placed in the personnel file (<u>Confidential Personnel File</u>).
- b. If an employee's performance has been rated "Unsatisfactory," the Executive Director or Principal (in consultation with the employee's supervisor) may require that the employee be placed on an improvement plan. An improvement plan will outline the following:
 - i. The specific criteria to be met
 - ii. Indicators of satisfactory performance,
 - iii. Support the employee will receive, when appropriate, in meeting these criteria
 - iv. The time that will be allowed for improvement
 - v. The date by which another evaluation report will be completed
- c. The employee, supervisor, and Executive Director or Principal must review the improvement plan prior to it going into effect. Also, upon being placed on an improvement plan, the employee will receive a written warning that if his/her performance remains "Unsatisfactory" at the end of the evaluation cycle, he/she may be dismissed from his/her position.
- d. In order to provide a more comprehensive picture of employee performance, multiple sources of data will be used in the process of evaluating employees as well as to target areas for specific professional development and improvement. The following sources of data may be used in relation to the performance criteria as part of the support and evaluation process (note: not all sources of data are applicable to all positions):
 - i. Observation
 - Classroom Observation
 - o Informal
 - Formal
 - Outside-of-Classroom Observation
 - Professional meetings
 - Parent conferences
 - o Duties
 - Information sessions, PTCA meetings, field trips, and other schoolsponsored events
 - ii. Conferences
 - Goal-setting conferences



- Pre- and/or post-observation conferences
- iii. Teacher and Student Work Artifacts
 - Student work samples, including feedback given on work
 - Student standardized test data
 - Lesson and unit plans
 - Assignment/unit overviews and rubrics
 - Progress and end-of-term reports
 - Communications sent home to parents/guardians
 - Discipline referrals
- iv. Surveys and Reflections
 - Student survey data
 - Parent/guardian survey data
 - Student interviews
 - Self-evaluations
- v. Other Sources
 - Attendance record
 - Arrival and departure times
 - Notes and data from other colleagues

Related Policies

Confidential Personnel File

Employee Levels

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.12. Employee Levels

Purpose

To provide an overview of career development at ANCS by defining the process through which readiness for expanded responsibilities is determined and the types of support and evaluation provided for employees at various stages of their career. To view employee evaluation schedules based on level, see the <u>Employee Evaluation</u> policy.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Level 1 Employees

- a. Level 1 employees may be new to ANCS or simply new to the positions they are in at ANCS. Their level of responsibility takes into account their accumulated experience previous to ANCS, but this level is intended to support employees new to the school and/or their positions as they acclimate to ANCS and work to establish and demonstrate effective practices consistent with the school's philosophy and performance expectations. Level 1 employees have a focused set of responsibilities centered primarily on the criteria of their specific position. They may, for example, be permitted to not take part in certain activities—such as K-8 committees or lunch/recess duties—as determined by the Executive Director and Campus Principals. All employees new to ANCS will participate in a yearlong induction program that includes mentorship from another employee during that year and possibly beyond.
- b. Any employees new to ANCS or new to their position or employees on an improvement plan will be categorized as level 1 employees in their positions unless otherwise determined by the Executive Director.

SECTION 2. Level 2 Employees

- a. Level 2 employees are those employees whose performance on the criteria specified for their position as a level 1 employee is proficient. With position responsibilities capably handled, level 2 employees are expected to take part in all regular faculty and staff activities.
- b. An employee may be hired at level 2 as determined by the Executive Director and Campus Principals as long as he/she:
 - i. Has at least two years of experience in a similar position or its equivalent.

Powered by BoardOnTrack

ii. Has demonstrated proficiency in his/her practice as outlined in the performance criteria for the position.

Forma

SECTION 3. Level 3 Employees



a. Level 3 employees are those employees whose performance over time on the criteria specified for their positions is determined to be exemplary. Level 3 employees may remain full time in their positions with the expectation that they serve as models and advisors for other employees, and they also are eligible for leadership roles within the school and oversight of special projects as determined by the Executive Director and Campus Principals. These additional roles and responsibilities may change from one year to the next.

SECTION 4. Movement Through the Levels

All employees begin at ANCS as either level 1 or level 2 employees. From that point forward, movement through the levels follows the process described below.

Movement From Level 1 to Level 2

- a. An employee may move from level 1 to level 2 status in the contract period immediately following at least two evaluations with ratings of "Proficient."
- b. A level 1 employee whose evaluation rating has not reached "Proficient" after one contract period may be placed on an improvement plan or dismissed from the position.

Movement From Level 2 to Level 3

- a. An employee may move from level 2 to level 3 status in the contract period immediately following at least two evaluations with ratings of "Exemplary." A level 2 employee must be at ANCS at least two years prior to moving to level 3.
- b. Movement from one level to the next is formally approved by the Executive Director based upon the recommendations of an employee's supervisor.

Resources

Employee Evaluation

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.13. Employee Grievances

Purpose

This policy governs the handling of employee grievances.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Employee Grievances

- a. As is natural, there are times when disputes arise between employees or between an employee and the school administration. Consistent with the philosophy behind the Charter, it is expected that during any dispute, all employees will model the conflict resolution skills that they advance to ANCS students. Should it become necessary, this procedure is intended to provide a simple, expeditious, and fair process for resolving employee complaints at the lowest possible level and with a minimum of conflict and formal proceedings.
- b. No employee will be subject to reprisal as a result of filing a complaint under this procedure.

SECTION 2. Scope of Complaint Procedure

Any current employee may file a complaint concerning his or her employment or the implementation of the personnel policies. The complaint should be in writing, and every attempt should have been made to settle the issue with individual conversations.

Exclusions

This procedure may not be used to complain about the following:

- a. Performance ratings contained in the employee's personnel evaluations
- b. The employee's job performance
- c. Termination, non-renewal, demotion, suspension, or reprimand of employee
- d. Revocation, suspension, or denial of certificates to all certified employees

SECTION 3. Employee Grievance Procedure

- 1. After a good-faith effort with the Principal to thoroughly resolve the dispute, all employees may submit their complaint, in writing, to the Principal within ten (10) days after the most recent event upon which the complaint is based. The written complaint should include identification of the problem, a description of the efforts undertaken to informally resolve the dispute, and a proposed resolution.
- 2. The Executive Director and a third party who is not involved with the grievance will meet with the employee to go over the complaint and for a discussion of the complaint with all parties involved. This meeting shall take place within ten (10) days of the receipt of the



complaint, and the Executive Director shall prepare a written decision within five (5) days of the meeting with the employee.

- 3. If the resolution suggested in the complaint is not reached, the employee may appeal the Executive Director's decision by filing within ten (10) days of the decision, with the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee , the original complaint, and a written explanation of why he or she disagrees with the decision of the Executive Director. Within five (5) days of receipt of the appeal, the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee shall schedule a hearing to hear from all parties. The Chair shall excuse themselves from the hearing if they have a conflict of interest in the subject of the hearing. A decision will then be rendered by the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee within five (5) days of the completion of the hearing. Any such proceedings shall be conducted in closed session.
- 4. The employee may appeal the decision of the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee shall be final unless appealed to the Board of Directors, which may review and modify the decision of the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee if it finds that the Chair or the Principal / Executive Director failed to properly follow the grievance procedure. A request for an appeal must be submitted to the Chair of the Board within five (5) days of the decision of the Chair of the <u>GovernancePersonnel</u> Committee. The Chair of the Board shall schedule a meeting to consider the appeal as soon as is practical. Board members who are interested parties shall excuse themselves from the hearing if such members have a conflict of interest in the subject of the appeal. Any such proceedings shall be conducted in closed session and a decision will be rendered by a majority vote of the Board of Directors within five (5) days of the meeting.

Mediation

At any time in the process, the employee may elect to proceed to mediation and the time frames specified in this policy will be suspended. If mediation fails to resolve the complaint, this procedure will resume where it left off prior to the mediation.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Forma



5.14. Hiring and Evaluation of Immediate Family Members

Purpose

It is the intent of this policy to avoid any situation wherein a conflict of interest might arise on the part of a Board member or a member of the staff of ANCS without unnecessarily excluding qualified immediate family members from seeking employment opportunities with ANCS.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Definitions

For the purposes of this policy, a member of the immediate family is defined to include spouses, domestic partners, parents, children, adopted children, brothers, sisters, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, step-parents, step-siblings, half-siblings, step-children, and a person who is engaged to be married to the employee or who otherwise holds himself/herself out as, or is generally known as, the person whom the employee intends to marry or with whom the employee intends to form a household.

SECTION 2. Hiring of a Family Member

- a. In any instance in which a member of a current employee's immediate family ("family member") applies for employment at the school, the employee shall remove himself/herself from the hiring process to the extent such that no favoritism on the part of the employee will influence the hiring for the position for which the employee's family member is applying. It is the responsibility of the employee to notify the Principal if a family member is applying for employment at the school or if a marriage will create the potential for a conflict of interest among current employees. In the case of the Executive Director, it is his/her responsibility to notify the chairs of the Governing Board and the Governance Committee if a family member is applying for employment at the school.
- b. The Governing Board Chair shall confirm compliance with this policy. Also, any staff member may notify the Executive Director and, in the case of a conflict related to the Executive Director, the Board Chair and of the Chair of the Governance Personnel Committee if he/she feels this policy is not being followed.
- c. Prior to approval of the contract by the Governing Board, the family relationship must be disclosed at a public meeting.

SECTION 3. Evaluation of a Family Member

The Principal and Executive Director shall make every effort to ensure that the family member is not supervised or evaluated by an immediate family member. If possible, the Principal and/or Executive Director shall designate another appropriate supervisor for the family member. There will be circumstances in which the related employee's supervision and evaluation of the family member cannot be entirely avoided (e.g., terms of contract, related employee is the Principal or Executive Director). Both parents/guardians and staff Approved June 16, 2015 Page 33 of 62

Forma



members may report any evidence of a conflict of interest or violation of this policy to the Principal and/or Executive Director. Any evaluations conducted of the employee will be reviewed and signed by both the supervisor and the Executive Director.

Related Policies

<u>Hiring</u>

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Powered by BoardOnTrack



5.15.**Hiring**

Purpose

This policy governs hiring at ANCS.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Vacancies

- a. As ANCS is an equal opportunity employer, vacancies are open to all qualified applicants without regard to race, gender, <u>disability</u>, age, religion, sexual orientation, <u>gender expression</u>, or national origin. All vacancies will be posted and/or advertised <u>publicly</u>.
- ANCS encourages promotion from within. When positions become vacant, notice will be posted <u>publicly</u>; current, qualified employees are encouraged to apply. All internal candidates will be interviewed.

SECTION 2. Steps for Filling a Position

- a. When a teaching position becomes vacant or when notice is given to leave a position, the Principal / Executive Director will notify the Chair of the Personnel Committee.
- b.a. Before the vacancy is posted, the Principal will draft the following reference documents:
 - i. Job description
 - ii. Criteria of eligibility
 - iii. Schedule and protocol concerning the job posting
 - iv. Text of the job posting
 - c. The position shall be posted on the ANCS website. The position may also be posted on the U.S. Charter Schools website, the Atlanta Journal-Constitution website, at local facilities that may include universities with education programs (GSU, Clark Atlanta, etc.) or on their websites, or on any other website or facility deemed appropriate by the Principal <u>or</u>[/] Executive Director.
 - d. The Principal or Executive Director will review complete applications and select the most qualified applicants for interviews.
 - e. Each time an opening occurs, an ad hoc committee will be formed. This committee shall be charged with interviewing the most qualified applicants as selected by the Principal <u>or</u>/ Executive Director. The ad hoc committee shall consist of the Principal <u>or</u>/ Executive Director of ANCS, at least one peer (e.g., a current second-grade teacher for a second-grade lead teacher position opening), and potentially others as deemed appropriate.
 - f. The interview shall contain questions calling upon direct experience as well as hypothetical scenarios. All candidates for the same position shall be interviewed with an identical set of questions. Committee member notes from each interview will be collected and kept on file for one year by the Principal / Executive Director.
 - g. At times, based on role, an ad hoc committee may be formed to interview candidates
 - h. <u>An interview panel, when appropriate, The ad hoc committee</u> will interview candidates until consensus has been reached on the most suitable candidate. Before an offer is extended to the candidate of choice, all references must be checked and determined to be satisfactory. Notes from reference calls must be kept in the candidate's employment file. Once a candidate has accepted the position and signed a contract, the other interviewees for that position will be notified by email of the decision. New hires must submit to <u>a</u> background check and fingerprinting within 30 days of offer.
 - i. Applicants selected must be recommended by the ad hoc committee and approved by the Board.

Related Policies



Hiring and Evaluation of Immediate Family Members

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.16. Leave of Absence

Purpose

This policy governs leave for ANCS employees.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Leave

Each member of the ANCS staff is entitled to leave as defined in this policy. Forms to request leave can be obtained from the office or the faculty room.

SECTION 2. Jury Duty or Witness Leave

ANCS is committed to allowing faculty and staff fulfill their civic duty by providing leave for jury and witness duty.

- a. An employee may be absent without loss of pay and without charge to any other category of leave when attending court as a juror or when subpoenaed to testify in a case arising out of duties as an employee of the school system.
- b. The employee must notify his or her immediate supervisor as soon as possible after the employee has been served with the summons for jury duty or a subpoena to appear in a case and provide a copy of the documentation to the employee's immediate supervisor.- The employee may retain any compensation he/she receives for serving as a juror or as a witness.

SECTION 3. Per Diem Leave

- a. Per diem leave is leave that is related to illness, health-related issues, or family-related health issues. Per diem leave shall be accumulated based on the following formula:
 - i. Staff members who have less than 10 years of experience accrue days at a rate of 1.25 days per month worked.
 - ii. Staff members who have 10 years or more years of experience accrue days at a rate of 2.25 days per month worked.
 - Part-time staff members accrue the per-month rate according to the fraction of time worked.
 - iv. Unused per diem days may be carried forward to subsequent school years. A staff member may accumulate up to 120 days of per diem leave.
- b. An employee who is retiring from ANCS has three options with respect to accrued per diem leave:
 - i. The employee can choose to be reimbursed for up to 120 days of accrued leave at the rate of \$41/day.
 - ii. If the employee has a minimum of 60 days of accrued leave, the employee can choose to apply the accrued leave days to establish sick leave credit with her/his Teachers Retirement System of Georgia (TRS) account. The policy concerning the establishment of sick leave credit with TRS is governed by TRS and is subject to its rules (see<u>http://www.trsga.com/active-member/retirement-service-anddisability/unused-sick-leave-credit-at-retirement</u>). Consistent with TRS policy, the employee may not be reimbursed for any days that are used to establish sick leave

Forma



credit with TRS. Creditable sick leave for TRS accumulates at a maximum rate of 1.25 days per month. For teachers who have earned sick leave at a rate of over 1.25 days per month (ANCS employees with over 10 years of teaching experience), the earned total for purposes of establishment of sick leave with TRS will be reduced to meet this standard of 1.25 days per month. This reduction of a leave is governed by TRS and occurs only when an employee wishes to use his or her accrued leave to establish sick leave credit with TRS.

- iii. The employee can apply some of her or his accrued leave to establish sick leave credit with TRS and request reimbursement at the rate of \$41/day for the remainder of the accrued leave (assuming the employee has a minimum of 60 days of accrued leave).
- c. ANCS employees are permitted to accrue per diem leave in addition to 120 days, but any accrued per diem days over 120 days will be placed in a TRS overage account. These additional days cannot be used as per diem leave during employment but can be applied to establish sick leave credit toward TRS when an employee reaches retirement, consistent with TRS policy and rules.
- e.d. Per diem leave may not be taken to extend a school holiday without documentation from a medical professional.

SECTION 4. Personal Leave

- a. Personal leave is leave that is used to conduct business that cannot be handled outside of the school day. <u>Personal leave may be taken for any purpose.</u>
- b. Each staff member is allocated three (3) personal days per year. Personal days do not carry over from one year to the next.
- c. The Principal or a designee should be notified at least one week in advance of a staff member requesting a personal day.
- d. Personal leave may not be taken to extend a school holiday without approval of the Principal.

SECTION 5. Parental LeaveMaternity/Paternity Leave

During maternity/paternity leave, the first days shall be taken through the employee's accumulated per diem days, after which the employee can apply for FMLA. For more information, see Section 9 below.

Maternity/paternity/adoption leave ("Parental Leave") under this policy is a paid leave associated with the birth of an employee's child or the placement of a child with the employee in connection with adoption or foster care. The purpose of Parental Leave is to enable the employee to care for and bond with a newborn or a newly adopted or newly placed child. To be eligible, the employee must have completed the equivalent of one semester (90 instructional days) of continuous employment at Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School immediately prior to the leave.

The amount of paid Parental Leave days is determined by the employee's election from among the following options:

- Twelve weeks of paid leave at 33% of salary;
- Eight weeks of paid leave at 50% of salary; or
- Four weeks of paid leave at 100% of salary.

All Parental Leave must be taken consecutively, without any suspension. The full amount of Parental Leave must be taken within the first 12 months of the date of birth of the employee's child or the date of placement of a child with the employee in connection with adoption or foster care. In no case will an employee receive more than one Parental Leave Approved June 16, 2015 Page 38 of 62



period (whatever the selected duration) in a rolling 12-month period, regardless of whether more than one birth, adoption or foster care placement event occurs within that 12-month time frame. If both parents are Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School employees, only one may access the paid benefits of this policy. Both, however, continue to be entitled to family and medical leave if eligible.

Temporary employees are not eligible for Parental Leave under this policy.

Continuation of Benefits

Health insurance benefits will continue to be provided during the paid Parental Leave under this policy at the same rate as in effect before the leave was taken regardless of the employee's length of service. Paid leave benefits will continue to accrue.

Requirements for Obtaining Parental Leave

The employee must provide to the employee's department head 30 days' notice of the requested leave (or as much notice as practicable if the leave is not foreseeable), complete the necessary forms that are available [insert where to get forms], and file them with the human resource department either in person or by emailing the forms to [insert where to send forms].

After the elected period of Parental Leave has been exhausted, subsequent leave will be covered under appropriate policies. The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) allows eligible employees up to 12 workweeks of unpaid leave annually. Paid leave under this policy will run concurrently with any available FMLA leave. After paid Parental Leave is exhausted, the employee is required to apply any other available paid leave, which will also run concurrently with FMLA leave.

Employees not eligible for FMLA leave should refer to the Leave of Absence Policy after the elected period of paid Parental Leave and any other paid leave have been exhausted regarding continuation of insurance coverage for employees on unpaid leave of absence.

Pay Back Requirement

If an employee, after taking Parental Leave, resigns from employment with Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School without finishing the remainder of the academic year in which the Parental Leave was taken, the School at its option may elect to require the employee to pay back an amount, up to the total sum value of benefits received.

Upon termination of the employee's employment with the School, the employee will not be paid for any unused Parental Leave for which the employee was eligible.

SECTION 9. Federal Family and Medical Leave Act/Long-Term Leave

a. Long-term leave is defined as leave for issues beyond the allocated leave time. It may be used for pregnancy, post-childbirth maternity or paternity, adoption, employee long-term illness, and any other reasons required by law. Long-term or family leave is not paid leave. The school may require certification from a qualified medical professional to document the reason for the leave and/or to verify the employee's ability to return to work. Long-term Approved June 16, 2015



leave may qualify under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), which is a federal law that gives eligible employees the right to take up to 12 weeks (or up to 26 weeks in the case of military caregiver leave) of job-protected leave for family or medical reasons. To be eligible for FMLA, an employee must have worked for ANCS full time for at least <u>12 months totaling</u> <u>1250 hours</u> one year.

b. The FMLA does not require employers to provide paid FMLA leave, but it does allow employers to charge FMLA absences simultaneously against any available paid leave as well as the FMLA. Therefore, an employee's available sick, personal, and per diem leave and vacation days will be applied to any FMLA leave taken for a reason covered by those provisions.

Reasons for Leave

The FMLA allows eligible employees to take leave for the following reasons:

- a. To care for the employee's child during the first year following the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child:-
- b. To care for the employee's spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition;
- <u>c.</u> Because of the employee's own serious or extended health condition (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions) that makes the employee unable to perform his/her job;
- c. .
- d. Any qualifying exigency arising from the fact that the employee's family member is a covered service member and is on covered active duty; or
- e. To care for a covered family member who is a covered service member and who suffers from a serious injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active duty.

Length of FMLA Leave

No more than 12 weeks of FMLA leave may be taken in any rolling 12-month period. Leave will be counted based on a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date that the employee's FMLA or per diem leave begins.

Advance Notice

Employees are required to provide advance notice of FMLA leave as follows:

- a. When the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, notice is required 30 days in advance.
- b. When the need for leave is not foreseeable, the employee must provide notice as soon as practical. The taking of leave may be denied or postponed if these notice requirements are not met.

Medical Certification

- a. When the leave of absence is occasioned by the employee's own serious health condition or that of a family member, the employee will be required to submit medical certification on the appropriate form. In addition, the Board may require a second or third opinion at the Board's expense.
- b. When the leave is over 30 days in length, recertification may be required at 30-day intervals throughout the leave. Recertification may also be required when the employee requests an extension of leave, when the medical situation changes, or when the Executive Director receives information that casts doubt on the continuing validity of an earlier certification.

Forma

Forma After: Style: a Aligned control

Forma

Forma color: A



Approval of **FMLA** Leave

Campus Principals will be responsible for reviewing leave requests. Approval of the leave will be given in writing and will specify an expected return date. If an extension of leave is needed, the employee must submit a new request and medical certification to the Campus Principal before the end of the original leave period. Leave taken without approval, as required under this policy, will be treated as unauthorized leave and may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Reinstatement

The FMLA entitles an employee to return to the same or an equivalent position at the conclusion of the leave. Certain restrictions apply to instructional employees whose return from leave would occur near the end of the semester. Under certain circumstances, these employees may be required to extend their leave through the end of the semester to avoid disruption of the education process.

Health Insurance

Employees on approved FMLA leave remain covered under the school's health insurance. Premium payments must be made within the time periods required. ANCS will continue to pay their portion of the premium; the employee is also responsible for their portion of the premium.

Forma keep w

Forma

SECTION 6. Military Leave

The military leave policy is defined by O.C.G.A. § 38-2-279:

- a. An ANCS employee who receives orders for active military duty will be entitled to a leave of absence with pay for the period of such ordered military duty, and while going to and returning from such duty, not to exceed a total of eighteen (18) work days in any one (1) federal fiscal year (October 1–September 30).
- b. After an employee has exhausted this period of paid military leave, ANCS may pay the employee for his or her accumulated per diem and personal leave. Following the maximum paid leave time, continued absence by the employee will be considered military leave without pay. The employee will be required to submit a copy of his or her orders to active military duty.
- c. In the event that the governor declares an emergency and orders an employee to active duty as a member of the National Guard, the employee will be paid his or her salary or other compensation as an employee for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days in any one (1) federal fiscal year.

SECTION 7. Bereavement Leave

- a. In the case of the death of a member of the immediate family, or of any relative living in the same home, the employee's administrator may grant the use of per diem or personal leave or, in some cases when an employee does not have available per diem or personal leave, a leave of absence for as many as five (5) work days at full pay.
- b. Immediate family means husband, wife, father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, grandparents, and these relatives-in-law.



c. The administrator may adjust the length of such leave to the distance traveled. A leave of one day or less may be granted by the administrator upon the death of relatives not in the immediate family.

SECTION 8. Leave to Pursue Education Goals

- a. ANCS wishes to support the advancement of learning for all staff. Therefore, the Board authorizes that regular full-time employees who have completed their probationary period may apply in writing to the Principal / Executive Director for a leave of absence for study that is directly related to their ANCS area of work or for such other types of study as may be approved by the Principal / Executive Director. The request for leave shall not exceed one year. Such leave may be granted without pay upon the recommendation of the Principal / Executive Directors.
- b. An employee who completes a period of leave to pursue educational goals will not be guaranteed their original position upon return, but they will be offered the same or equivalent (comparable or similar) position with equivalent employment benefits, pay, and other terms if such a position is available.
- c. If an employee is granted leave for education reasons, a temporary replacement will be hired during the employee's absence.

SECTION 9. Federal Family and Medical Leave Act/Long-Term Leave

- c. Long-term leave is defined as leave for issues beyond the allocated leave time. It may be used for pregnancy, post-childbirth maternity or paternity, adoption, employee long-term illness, and any other reasons required by law. Long-term or family leave is not paid leave. The school may require certification from a qualified medical professional to document the reason for the leave and/or to verify the employee's ability to return to work. Long-term leave may qualify under the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA), which is a federal law that gives eligible employees the right to take up to 12 weeks of job-protected leave for family or medical reasons. To be eligible for FMLA, an employee must have worked for ANCS full time for at least one year.
- d. The FMLA does not require employers to provide paid FMLA leave, but it does allow employers to charge FMLA absences simultaneously against any available paid leave as well as the FMLA. Therefore, an employee's available sick, personal, and per diem leave and vacation days will be applied to any FMLA leave taken for a reason covered by those provisions..

Reasons for Leave

The FMLA allows eligible employees to take leave for the following reasons:

- d. To care for the employee's child during the first year following the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the child
- e. To care for the employee's spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition
- f. Because of the employee's own serious or extended health condition (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions) that makes the employee unable to perform his/her job.

Length of FMLA Leave

No more than 12 weeks of FMLA leave may be taken in any <u>rolling</u> 12-month period. Leave will be counted based on a rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date that the employee's FMLA or per diem leave begins.



Advance Notice

Employees are required to provide advance notice of FMLA leave as follows:

- c. When the need for FMLA leave is foreseeable, notice is required 30 days in advance.
- d. When the need for leave is not foreseeable, the employee must provide notice as soon as practical. The taking of leave may be denied or postponed if these notice requirements are not met.

Medical Certification

- c. When the leave of absence is occasioned by the employee's own serious health condition or that of a family member, the employee will be required to submit medical certification on the <u>appropriate</u> form provided by the Board. In addition, the Board may require a second or third opinion at the Board's expense.
- d. When the leave is over 30 days in length, recertification may be required at 30-day intervals throughout the leave. Recertification may also be required when the employee requests an extension of leave, when the medical situation changes, or when the Board receives information that casts doubt on the continuing validity of an earlier certification.

Approval of Leave

Campus Principals will be responsible for reviewing leave requests. Approval of the leave will be given in writing and will specify an expected return date. If an extension of leave is needed, the employee must submit a new request and medical certification to the Campus Principal before the end of the original leave period. Leave taken without approval, as required under this policy, will be treated as unauthorized leave and may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Reinstatement

The FMLA entitles an employee to return to the same or an equivalent position at the conclusion of the leave. Certain restrictions apply to instructional employees whose return from leave would occur near the end of the semester. Under certain circumstances, these employees may be required to extend their leave through the end of the semester to avoid disruption of the education process.

Health Insurance

Employees on approved FMLA leave remain covered under the school's health insurance. Premium payments must be made within the time periods required. The Board will continue to pay their portion of the premium; the employee is also responsible for their portion of the premium.



Related Guidance

See the U.S. Department of Labor's website

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Forma Forma Forma

Forma



5.17. Professional Conduct

Purpose

This policy governs professional conduct by ANCS employees.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Decorum

- a. ANCS expects all employees to maintain the highest standards of conduct and act in a mature and responsible manner at all times. Each staff member is expected at all times to perform the responsibilities of her/his position to the best of her/his ability. Employees shall not engage in activities that violate federal, state, or local laws or that diminish ANCS in any way.
- b. Decorum by all staff should mirror teaching by example. Proper language, gestures, emotional control, and mannerisms should befit those of a role model for students and parents.

SECTION 2. Ethics and Conduct

All staff members are reminded that the welfare of the child is the very first concern of our school. It is the responsibility of all staff members to support programs and activities when in public. When a staff member criticizes colleagues, families, or school programs, these criticisms should be discussed in instructional teams and all criticisms should be constructive and made in a professional manner. Any criticisms should be directed to the Principal / Executive Director.

SECTION 3. Communicable Diseases

- a. If your medical condition poses a substantial health or safety risk to the school students and staff, you must leave the premises until your attendance on duty no longer poses a threat.
- b. ANCS relies upon public health and medical experts' written documentation to determine whether to require your removal and when to permit your return to work.

SECTION 4. Confidentiality

Professional communication by ANCS employees requires no discussion of individual students, families, or colleagues and their problems in non-professional situations. The faculty lounge and public places are inappropriate locations for these discussions. Breaches of confidentiality will be subject to disciplinary action.

SECTION 5. Dress and Appearance Standards



ANCS recognizes that professional attire helps set the tone of an educational system. Faculty and staff are expected to dress professionally as befits their teaching activity and should be in keeping with expectations held for students. Dressing in an appropriate manner for student learning and as a model for all students does not include the wearing of sweatpants or t-shirts with statements on them (unless an ANCS shirt).

Related Policies

Reporting Misconduct

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.18. Professional Growth

Purpose

This policy governs professional growth for ANCS personnel.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Supporting Professional Growth

a. In addition to the support and feedback gained through the evaluation process, the school also seeks to invest in the ongoing learning and development of employees.

SECTION 2. Individual Professional Development Funds

- a. An employee may request funds for an individual professional development opportunity by submitting a short, written proposal to his/her supervisor, who will review proposals, keeping in mind school and individual professional goals. Upon approval by the supervisor, the supervisor will formally request final approval from the Principal. Final approval of requests for professional development is at the Principal's sole discretion. Principals may request funds for professional development from the Executive Director. Final approval of a Principal's request for professional development is within the Executive Director's sole discretion. The Executive Director may request funds for professional development from the Finance and Operations Committee.
- b. Upon returning from the professional development experience, the employee may will complete a short written reflection and/or presentation to appropriate faculty/staff members. These reflections and presentations will help share knowledge gained from the experience, allow the school to maintain a record of professional development, and provide a guide for future use of these funds.
- c. Individual professional development funds may only be used for the direct expenses related to the opportunity. For example, the cost of a conference (conference, materials, etc.) is covered, but parking, travel expenses, meals, or childcare costs are not.

Forma

Forma

Forma
Forma

Format Format

Forma

Forma Forma

Related Policies

Employee Evaluation



Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.19. **Progressive Discipline**

Purpose

This policy governs disciplinary procedures for ANCS staff.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Expectations

ANCS expects all employees to maintain the highest standards of conduct and act in a mature and responsible manner at all times. Each staff member is expected at all times to perform the responsibilities of her/his position to the best of her/his ability. Employees shall not engage in activities that violate federal, state, or local laws or that diminish ANCS in any way. Key in the success of this task is effective communication of those responsibilities and any concerns about the performance of those responsibilities (<u>Professional Conduct</u>).

SECTION 2. Inappropriate Behaviors and Activities

ANCS expects employees to act in a responsible and mature way at all times. Supervisors shall answer any questions concerning any work or safety rule. Inappropriate behaviors include but are not limited to poor work performance and class management, tardiness and attendance issues, and insubordination. (Professional Conduct). These types of inappropriate conduct may be addressed through a Professional Development Plan for the employee. Other inappropriate conduct may be addressed in accordance with the Professional Conduct policy and the employee's employment agreement, as determined within a supervisor's discretion.

SECTION 3. Progressive Discipline Procedure

- Under the following framework, open and productive communication will assist all employees in improving their job performance and/or correcting any inappropriate behavior.
- b. The Principal / Executive Director, at his/her discretion, may combine or skip steps depending on the particulars of each situation, up to and including immediate termination. The level of disciplinary intervention may also vary; factors that will be considered may include but are not limited to whether an offense is repeated despite counseling or training, the employee's performance record, and the impact of the performance/conduct issues on ANCS.

Warning	Туре	Discussion	Filed With	Response Time	Required Result
First	Verbal Warning with Written Meeting Summar y	Executive	Personnel Folder ; copies to Personnel and Board Chairs	2 weeks to enter response	Improved Performance

Forma

Format Format Format Format



Third and Final Written Principal / Executive Personnel Folder; copies to Not applicable2 weeks to request Termination Director and Employee Personnel and Board Chairs Board Board	Second	Written	Principal / Executive Director <u>and</u> Employee	Personnel Folder; copies to Personnel and Board Chairs	2 weeks to enter response	Improved Performance
	Third and Final	Written	Executive Director <u>and</u>	copies to Personnel and	weeks to request hearing in front of	Termination

c. For all warnings, the signature of the Principal / Executive Director is required and the signature of the employee is requested.

First Warning – Verbal with Written Summary

- a. Staff member will be given a verbal warning concerning the poor job performance or behavior. The warning will be given in private by the Principal and Executive Director, stating that it is a first warning outlining the issue, the corrective actions to be taken, and the time frame for these actions to be implemented. The warning will also outline that if the issue is not resolved, further disciplinary action will be taken, including but not limited to termination.
- b. Following this warning, a written memo will be sent to the employee summarizing the discussion. A copy of this memo will be filed in the personnel file of the employee and will also be forwarded to the Board Chair and Personnel Committee Chair, The employee will have the option of placing a responsive memo in his or her personnel file within 2 weeks of the issuance of the warning.

Second Warning – Written

- a. Staff member will be given a written warning concerning the poor job performance or behavior. The warning will be given in private by the Principal and Executive Director, clearly stating that it is a <u>second</u>first written warning, outlining the issue, corrective actions to be taken, and the time frame for these actions to be implemented. The warning will also outline that if the issue is not resolved, further disciplinary action will be taken, including but not limited to termination.
- b. The Executive Director will sign it and the employee will be asked to sign; however, they have the option to refuse to sign. A copy of this memo will be filed in the personnel file of the employee and will also be forwarded to the Board Chair and Personnel Committee Chair. The employee will have the option of placing a responsive memo in his or her personnel file within 2 weeks of the issuance of the warning.

Third and Final Warning – Written with Action

In the event that the staff member does not correct the poor performance or behavior in the manner stated in the second warning, the Principal / Executive Director will meet with the Board Chair and Personnel Committee Chair to determine what action is to occur and to discuss the action with legal counsel prior to taking action. The Principal / Executive Director will then meet with the staff member, provide a third and final written summary, and inform the employee that he or she will be terminated.

Powered by BoardOnTrack

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma



Further Action Taken

- a. If an employee is terminated with cause, the staff member does have the right to a hearing before the Board of Directors prior to the termination going into effect.
- b. A request for a hearing must be presented in writing to the Principal / Executive Director within 10 days of the notice of termination.

Related Policies

Professional Conduct

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.20. Reporting Misconduct

Purpose

This policy governs defining, identifying, and reporting procedures for misconduct.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Reporting

ANCS encourages all ANCS employees to report misconduct to their immediate supervisor or, if their immediate supervisor is involved in the alleged misconduct, to the Principal of their Campus- If the Principal of their Campus is involved in the alleged misconduct, employees may report the misconduct to the Executive Director. If the Executive Director is involved in the alleged misconduct, employees may report the misconduct to the Board Chair. ANCS is committed to protecting employees who report suspected misconduct. ANCS will not tolerate retaliationate against employees who make good-faith reports of misconduct. For purposes of this policy, Tthe term "employee" includes all staff, independent contractors, and volunteers.

SECTION 2. Confidentiality

ANCS will try to prevent disclosure of the identity of the employee reporting alleged misconduct. However, the identity of an employee may become obvious to others due to the nature of the information. The employee's identity will be disclosed to the following. where necessary:

- a. Law enforcement agency investigating the matter
- b. ANCS_-employees assigned to investigate the matter

SECTION 3. Definition of Misconduct

Misconduct is an activity performed by an employee that violates state and/or federal laws or regulations, local ordinances, or ANCS policy (<u>Professional Conduct</u>).

Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma Forma

Forma

Forma

Related Policies

Professional Conduct



Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17


5.21. Sexual Discrimination, Harassment, and Misconduct

Purpose

This policy governs sexual discrimination, harassment, and misconduct at ANCS.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Prohibition of Sexual Harassment

- a. Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination that undermines the integrity of the educational and employment environment and violates Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. Accordingly, sexual misconduct perpetuated against or by employees is prohibited at ANCS. It is the policy of ANCS that all individuals shall learn and work in an environment free of all forms of discrimination, including sex discrimination.
- b. ANCS will investigate all complaints, formal or informal, verbal or written, of alleged improper sexual conduct and will discipline any individual who, in the course of his or her education, employment, or involvement with ANCS, exposes another person to improper sexual conduct.

SECTION 2. Definitions of Misconduct

- a. Sexual misconduct refers to any unwelcome or unlawful sexual act; any solicitation of any unlawful sexual act, whether written, verbal, or physical; any act of child abuse, as defined by law; any solicitation, encouragement, or consummation of a romantic or physical relationship with a student; or any sexual contact with a student. The definition of the term "romantic relationship" includes dating a student or otherwise being involved in an inappropriate social relationship or any act of unlawful sexual harassment as defined by law.
- b. Sexual harassment is a specific form of sexual misconduct. As defined by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and the Office for Civil Rights (OCR), sexual harassment consists of unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, sexually motivated physical conduct, or other verbal or physical conduct or communication of a sexual nature when:
 - i. Submission to such conduct or communication is made a term or condition, either explicitly or implicitly, of obtaining or retaining employment, educational opportunities, or other benefits provided by ANCS;
 - ii. An individual's submission to, or rejection of, such conduct or communication is used as a factor in decisions affecting that individual's employment, educational opportunities, or other benefits provided by ANCS; or



- iii. Such conduct or communication has the purpose or effect of substantially or unreasonably interfering with an individual's employment, or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or learning environment.
- c. Sexual harassment may consist of exposure to a pattern of objectionable sexual behavior or exposure to a single, serious act. Sexual harassment exists when such conduct is unwelcome, offensive to both the recipient and to a reasonable person, and severe or pervasive. Even if never acted upon, threats or suggestions of preferential or adverse treatment with regard to an individual's employment or educational status constitute sexual harassment when made by a person in a supervisory position.

SECTION 3. Complaint Resolution Process

Any employee (full-time, part-time, hourly), contractor, or consultant who believes that he or she has been exposed to unwelcome sexual misconduct should immediately report the alleged act to the<u>ir immediate supervisor or, if their immediate supervisor is involved in the alleged misconduct, to the</u> Principal of their Campus. -If the Principal of their Campus is involved in the alleged misconduct, employees may report the misconduct to the Executive Director. If the Executive Director is involved in the alleged misconduct, employees may report the misconduct, employees may report the misconduct of interest, an employee may report the alleged act to the Board Chair or, iln addition, in the case of a conflict of interest, an employee may report the alleged act to the Board Chair of the Personnel Committee. The resolution will then proceed as outlined in the ANCS Grievance Procedure (Grievances – Employee).

SECTION 4. Sanctions

Appropriate disciplinary actions will be taken against persons found to have violated this policy. These actions shall include sanctions authorized by law and Board policy. These actions shall also include other measures designed to end sexual misconduct and to prevent its recurrence. Due process rights shall be afforded to all affected persons, where appropriate.

SECTION 5. Appeals Process

See <u>Grievances – Employee</u> (refer to "Section 3. Employee Grievance Procedure").

SECTION 6. Prohibitions

ANCS prohibits retaliation, intentional false reporting, and hindering an investigation.

Retaliation

- a. Retaliation against individuals who file complaints of alleged sexual misconduct is expressly prohibited. Retaliation includes, but is not limited to, any form of intimidation, reprisal, or harassment.
- b. Appropriate disciplinary action up to and including termination shall be imposed for verified acts of retaliation.

Intentional False Reporting

Persons who knowingly fabricate allegations of sexual misconduct shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Forma Forma

Forma

Forma

Forma Forma



Hindering an Investigation

Individuals who withhold information, purposely provide inaccurate facts, violate privacy and confidentiality rules, or otherwise hinder an investigation of sexual misconduct shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

SECTION 7. Notice

This policy shall be available at the school and online on the school's website.

SECTION 8. Right to Alternate Dispute Resolution Procedures

These procedures do not deny the right of any individual to pursue other avenues of recourse.

Related Policies

<u>Grievances – Employee</u>

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Forma Forma



5.22. Smoke-Free School Zone

Purpose

This policy governs the use of tobacco products on ANCS grounds.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Scope of Policy

- As part of ANCS' commitment to providing a healthy and safe environment for its community, students, employees, and visitors are prohibited from smoking, vaping, or using any tobacco product at ANCS facilities or ANCS-sponsored events, such as fundraisers, where students are present. ANCS prohibits the use of any tobacco product, including but not limited to cigarettes, cigars, cigarillos, small cigars, pipes, hookah, smokeless tobacco (otherwise known as dip, chew, snuff, spit, and snus), electronic cigarettes, and other smokeless products.
- b. All areas of ANCS are smoke-free without exception. This includes but is not limited to private, enclosed offices; conference and meeting rooms; cafeterias/lunchrooms; employee break areas; playing/athletic fields; entrances and exits to buildings; and parking lots.
- c. Smoking is prohibited by employees while they are on duty supervising students, whether they are on or off ANCS property.
- d. The Principal / Executive Director is authorized to develop regulations to implement this policy.

SECTION 2. Notification of Policy to Prospective Employees

In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 31-12A-5, all prospective employees are to be notified of this no-smoking policy upon their application for employment.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17

Forma

Forma

Forma



5.23.Weapons

Purpose

This policy governs weapons on ANCS property and ANCS-sponsored trips and activities.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Prohibition of Weapons

- a. ANCS is committed to maintaining a safe and secure working and learning environment to ensure student success. The Board and ANCS prohibits the possession of weapons of any type on school property, on school-sponsored trips, in the school safety zone, and at school-sponsored activities. Anyone violating this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and, potentially, prosecution under the provisions of law.
- b. In response to recent changes made to state statute <u>Under state law, O.C.G.A. § 16-11-127.1</u>, weapons are not allowed on ANCS property, in schools, administrative offices, or at school activities. Trained police officers are the only individuals who may carry weapons on ANCS property (schools and administrative offices), school safety zones, and at activities.

SECTION 2. Definition of "Weapon"

The term "weapon" means and includes those items listed in O.C.G.A. § 16-11-127.1 and other applicable laws. However, regardless of the definitions and specific instruments defined in said laws, the Board ANCS prohibits the possession of knives of any type on school property, in the school safety zone, and at school-sponsored activities, if any such knife can be used to inflict bodily harm, with the exception of knives used by the school'sschool's kitchen staff for food preparation in accordance with safety guidelines and policies.

Resources and Related Policies

O.C.G.A. § 16-11-127.1 can be viewed at http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/gacode/default.asp.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.24. Workplace Violence

Purpose

This describes workplace violence policy at ANCS.

Duration

This policy is permanent, but it is subject to revisions.

Policy

SECTION 1. Scope

- a. ANCS strives to have a workplace that is free from acts or threats of physical violence, harassment, intimidation, or other threatening and/or disruptive behavior that takes place on ANCS grounds or offsite at an ANCS-related activity. To this end, ANCS seeks to provide a safe work environment for all employees to the full extent of the law. This statement shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of ANCS to take action beyond what is required by law.
- b. ANCS has a zero-tolerance policy regarding workplace violence. Violations of this policy will lead to disciplinary and/or legal action as appropriate.
- c. Employees are expected to refrain from conduct that may be dangerous to others. Conduct that intimidates, threatens, or intimidates another employee, student, or visitor will not be tolerated.
- d. ANCS resources may not be used to threaten, harass, or stalk anyone, whether on or off ANCS grounds.
- e. ANCS treats threats stemming from a personal relationship as it does other forms of violence.

SECTION 2. Reporting and Investigating Workplace Violence

- a. All indirect or direct threats of violence, incidents of actual violence, or suspicious individuals or activities should be reported as soon as possible to a direct supervisor <u>or</u>, if the direct supervisor is involved in the alleged misconduct, to the Principal of the Campus. If the Principal of the Campus is involved in the alleged activity, employees may report the activity to the Executive Director. If the Executive Director is involved in the alleged misconduct to the Board Chair.
- b. ANCS will thoroughly and promptly investigate all reports of threats or incidents of violence and of suspicious individuals or activities. The identity of the person making the report will be protected as much as possible. ANCS will not retaliate against employees who make good-faith reports of violence, threats, or suspicious individuals or activities. To maintain workplace safety and the integrity of its investigation, the school may suspend employees suspected of workplace violence or threats of violence, either with or without pay, pending the results of its investigation.

Related Policies

Approved August 19, 2021



Professional Conduct

Student Discipline

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:
06/16/15	07/01/15	08/17



5.25 Parental Leave Policy

Paid Parental Leave Levels and Eligibility

Maternity/paternity/adoption leave ("Parental Leave") under this policy is a paid leave associated with the birth of an employee's child or the placement of a child with the employee in connection with adoption or foster care. The purpose of Parental Leave is to enable the employee to care for and bond with a newborn or a newly adopted or newly placed child. To be eligible, the employee must have completed the equivalent of one semester (90 instructional days) of continuous employment at Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School immediately prior to the leave.

The amount of paid Parental Leave days is determined by the employee's election from among the following options:

- Twelve weeks of paid leave at 33% of salary;
- Eight weeks of paid leave at 50% of salary; or
- Four weeks of paid leave at 100% of salary.

All Parental Leave must be taken consecutively, without any suspension. The full amount of Parental Leave must be taken within the first 12 months of the date of birth of the employee's child or the date of placement of a child with the employee in connection with adoption or foster care. In no case will an employee receive more than one Parental Leave period (whatever the selected duration) in a rolling 12-month period, regardless of whether more than one birth, adoption or foster care placement event occurs within that 12-month time frame. If both parents are Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School employees, only one may access the paid benefits of this policy. Both, however, continue to be entitled to family and medical leave if eligible.

Temporary employees are not eligible for Parental Leave under this policy.

Continuation of Benefits

Health insurance benefits will continue to be provided during the paid Parental Leave under this policy at the same rate as in effect before the leave was taken regardless of the employee's length of service. Paid leave benefits will continue to accrue.

Requirements for Obtaining Parental Leave

The employee must provide to the employee's department head 30 days' notice of the requested leave (or as much notice as practicable if the leave is not foreseeable), complete the necessary forms that are available [insert where to get forms], and file them with the human resource department either in person or by emailing the forms to [insert where to send forms].

After the elected period of Parental Leave has been exhausted, subsequent leave will be covered under appropriate policies. The Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) allows eligible employees up to 12 workweeks of unpaid leave annually. Paid leave under this Approved August 19, 2021 Page 61 of 62

Forma

Forma border (No bo





policy will run concurrently with any available FMLA leave. After paid Parental Leave is exhausted, the employee is required to apply any other available paid leave, which will also run concurrently with FMLA leave.

Employees not eligible for FMLA leave should refer to the Leave of Absence Policy after the elected period of paid Parental Leave and any other paid leave have been exhausted regarding continuation of insurance coverage for employees on unpaid leave of absence.

Pay Back Requirement

If an employee, after taking Parental Leave, resigns from employment with Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School without finishing the remainder of the academic year in which the Parental Leave was taken, the School at its option may elect to require the employee to pay back an amount, up to the total sum value of benefits received.

Upon termination of the employee's employment with the School, the employee will not be paid for any unused Parental Leave for which the employee was eligible.

Approval

Policy approval date:	Policy effective date:	Policy review date:	•	Format stops:
08/19/21	08/19/21	08/1/2024	•	Format stops:

Coversheet

Nominations Task Force Update

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: V. Committee Updates H. Nominations Task Force Update FYI

Nominations Task Force March 17.pdf



Nominations Task Force

March 17, 2022

Number of Applicants: 21

Meet and Greets: Hosted an informational session and a virtual conversation with all candidates on March 3rd and 4th. All candidates attended one of the meetings.

Board and Committee Meeting Invitations: All candidates have been invited to attend the March 17th board meeting, and many of them have requested invitations to committee meetings.

Final Interview Selection: Task force will meet next week to determine the final interview slate. A formal invitation to submit a full application packet and sit for an interview will be emailed on March 28th.

Interviews: A full application and supporting documents are due on April 9th. Interviews will be scheduled for the week of April 12th.

Notification: Email to notify members of the proposed 2022-2023 slate will go out on April 30th. The board will vote on the new slate during the May board meeting.

Coversheet

Fund Development Committee Monthly Report

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by:	V. Committee Updates I. Fund Development Committee Monthly Report FYI
Related Material:	Fund Development Report_March 2022.pdf Fund_Development Financials_Report_Feb_2022.pdf 21-22_GG_Historical_Giving.pdf



Fund Development Committee Report | March 10, 2022

Prepared by Barrett Coker Krise (Fund Development Committee Chair)

2021-2022 Gather & Grow Fund (Individual Giving)

- YTD Total (through January 31): \$117,986.75
- Goal: \$140,000
- Board Participation: 100%
- Other Fund Development Activities (YTD)
 - Sponsorships (includes pledges): \$31,288.35

Gather & Grow Campaign

- The Gather & Grow campaign continues to outpace trends from prior years and is remaining strong.
- The committee is confident we will reach out \$140,000 goal and hope to exceed it.

Other Updates

- Planning continues for Wonderball. The committee is working to pull together a wonderful and inclusive event to celebrate our school family
- Tickets for Wonderball will go on sale in the coming days, so keep your eyes on the Courier
- The Fund Development committee is partnering with the PTCA to put on a "Gratitude Week" for members of our school family during the second week of May. This is an opportunity for us to thank our teachers, students, families, community members and others who help make Neighborhood Charter such a special place

End of report.

			-		-				*Einana	ials from Plasm	arana may not m	atch Quick Poolss de	e to processing delay
									Financi	iuis from bioome			allocated to the PTCA
	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Cumulative
	Jui	Aug	Seh	001	NOV	Dec	Jall	rep	IVIdi	Арг	ividy	Juli	Cumulativ
NDIVIDUAL GIVING Revised Goals								\$4,000.00	\$4,000.00	\$4,000.00	\$10,000.00	\$10,000.00	
20-21 Goals	\$3,000.00	\$7,000.00	\$5,000.00	\$20,000.00	\$23,000.00	\$20,000.00	\$4,000.00	\$7,000.00	\$16,000.00	\$15,000.00	\$10,000.00	\$10,000.00	\$140,000.00
20-21 Actuals*	\$3,972.01	\$8,764.49	\$6,247.88	\$30,009.00	\$33,514.76	\$23,343.88	\$5,247.15	\$6,887.58					\$117,986.75
Variance	\$972.01	\$1,764.49	\$1,247.88	\$10,009.00	\$10,514.76	\$3,343.88	\$1,247.15	\$112.42	\$16,000.00	\$15,000.00	\$10,000.00	\$10,000.00	\$22,013.25
SUPPLY DONATIONS	\$6,548.85	\$3,410.18	\$100.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00						\$10,059.03
SPONSORSHIP**	\$0.00	\$18,760.22	\$9,778.73	\$1,250.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$1,500.00						\$31,288.95
IOTAL REVENUE	\$10,520.86	\$30,934.89	\$16,026.61	\$31,259.00	\$33,514.76	\$23,343.88	\$6,747.15	\$6,887.58	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$159,234.73
Recurring Donations/Pledges	\$1,604.20	\$2,356.96	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$1,845.41	\$2,099.09	\$3,845.41	\$24,668.94
HISTORICAL GIVING													
20-21	\$3,496.52	\$2,552.42	\$2,469.48	\$7,142.44	\$7,674.91	\$36,722.68	\$4,073.17	\$8,259.88	\$24,137.88	\$6,867.90	\$11,226.49	\$11,369.74	\$125,993.51
19-20	\$2,342.15	\$4,471.12	\$4,117.36	\$20,059.86	\$9,784.23	\$35,619.88	\$4,227.01	\$4,610.71	\$12,266.42	\$8,131.94	\$9,433.23	\$4,066.79	\$119,130.70
18-19	\$2,939.00	\$2,677.80	\$2,375.98	\$18,728.84	\$33,429.90	\$20,669.81	\$4,255.27	\$8,719.02	\$6,753.07	\$15,614.18	\$11,720.37	\$12,658.17	\$140,541.43
17-18	\$3,689.36	\$3,635.65	\$2,850.50	\$23,585.50	\$28,874.49	\$20,778.70	\$3,214.50	\$3,691.50	\$2,298.50	\$5,513.14	\$29,673.67	\$5,738.56	\$133,544.07
GIVING BY DONOR TYPE	(. .	FY22 FUND D						

	<u># of donors</u>	<u>Total amount</u>	Participation Rate
Parent/Guardian	238	\$79,900.97	45%
Grandparent/Special Friend	86	\$32,019.00	9%
Board Member	12	\$7,341.54	100%
Faculty/Staff	13	\$2,275.64	12%
Alumni Parent	9	\$1,890.00	7%
Supporter			0%

TOTAL INCOME	\$233,000	TOTAL EXPENSES	\$46,625
Other Fundraising	\$3,000	Other Events	\$7,000
Sponsorships	\$30,000	Wonderball	\$30,000
Wonderball	\$60,000	Marketing/Direct Mail	\$6,425
Annual Campaign	\$140,000	Software	\$3,200

Gather & Grow Historical Giving



Coversheet

Training Reminder

Section: Item: Purpose: Submitted by: Related Material: VI. Housekeeping Items A. Training Reminder FYI

Housekeeping Items_03.2022.pdf

Atlanta Neighborhood Charter School - ANCS Governing Board Monthly Meeting - Agenda - Thursday March 17, 2022 at 6:30 PM

Complete Mandatory Training by 6/31

New Members 15 hours required

- 3 Whole Board Team Training
- 3 Financial Governance (delivered by <u>GADOE</u>)¹
- 3 Best Practices in Charter School Governance
- 3 Funding & Budgeting
- 3 Elective topics

Existing Members 9 hours required

- 3 Whole Board Team Training
- 3 Financial Governance
- 3 Elective topics²

TO ACCESS COURSES:

- 1. Log into Instructure Canvas: <u>https://gcsa.instructure.com/</u>
- 2. Go to **Courses** in the left blue navigation bar, then **FY22 GCSA Governance.**
- 3. Select Assignments in the menu.
- 4. Links to courses, separated by required and elective, will be displayed. Select desired course.

TO ACCESS COMPLETIONS:

- 1. Log into Instructure Canvas: <u>https://gcsa.instructure.com/</u>
- 2. Go to Courses in the left blue navigation bar, then FY22 GCSA Governance.
- 3. Select Grades in the menu
- 4. View generated report.

- 1. Look under the heading "Resources for Local Charter School Boards".
- 2. For Board Chair, "Best Practices for Board Chair" must be an elective topic.